*
R4

g0 U5 L2 541
UNIONINSURANCE

The Integrated Report - 2023

Single Business Tower, Sheikh Zayed Road,
P.O. Box No 119227, Dubai, United Arab Emirates
TR +971(04) 3787 777 (764) = +971(04) 3787 778 WWW.Uniohinsurance.ae


https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ie8zC6B03irWBzZUpfMJd
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/00aWC7pAgCARJlnTWDB5F
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/lGehC8M9jc6kK1Bs2ekbz
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/wwEIC9D2kHkOpQrFOfrbV
https://www.unioninsurance.ae/

*
R4

g0 U5 L2 541
UNIONINSURANCE

The Integrated Report include the following:

1. Board of Directors Report
Auditor’s Report
Audited Financials and their Notes

Corporate Governance Report

TE EATEY

Sustainability Report

Single Business Tower, Sheikh Zayed Road,

P.O. Box No 119227, Dubai, United Arab Emirates
TR +971(04) 3787 777 (764) = +971(04) 3787 778 WWW.Uniohinsurance.ae


https://www.unioninsurance.ae/

gsolilssL_a 54l é‘)
UNIONINSURANCE

Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C., we have the pleasure in presenting
our Report on the performance of the Company, along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ending 31* December 2023.

Despite the challenges the company faced due to various restructuring of the business and changes in
management, the Company has achieved a commendable performance during the year. The year was also the
first year of presenting the financial statements under IFRS 17.

Key performance indicators were as follows:

e In accordance with Central Bank regulations, the company continues to maintain technical reserves as
recommended by the Appointed Actuary.

e AM Best has revised the outlook to stable from negative and affirmed the Company's Financial Strength
Rating of B+ (Good) and Long-Term Issuer Credit Rating of "bbb—" (Good). According to AM Best’s Press
Release on 14 December 2023 .— “These ratings reflect Union’s balance sheet strength, which AM Best
assesses as strong, as well as its adequate operating performance, limited business profile and marginal
enterprise risk management”.

2023 Financial results

e In 2023, the Company recorded a Gross Premium of AED 727 million, compared to AED 868 million
in 2022.
e Insurance Revenue for 2023 amounted to AED 634 million, compared to AED 763 million for the

same period last year.
e Insurance Service results for the year 2023 amounted to AED 1.2 million, compared to AED 15.3

million in 2022.

e The Company reported an investment profit of AED 17.2 million in 2023, compared to AED 5.9 million
in 2022.

e The Net Loss for the year 2023 amounted to AED 2.4 million, compared to AED 2.5 million Profit for
the year 2022.

e Equity as of 01/01/2023, as restated due to the implementation of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9, was AED 207.5
million. The total equity as of 31/12/2023 amounted to AED 205 million.

e The Company's total assets were AED 1.5 billion at the end of 2023, compared to AED 1.5 billion at
the end of 2022.

Based on the financial results for the year 2023, no cash dividends will be distributed to the
shareholders for the year 2023.

The Management takes this opportunity to thank all the shareholders and customers for their continued
support and also expresses sincere appreciation to Company managers and staff for their dedication and hard

work.

For and on behalf of Union Insurance Co. P.J.S.C.

Chairman of the Board
Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almoalla

—N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Onini

We have audited the financial statements of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (the “Company™), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fait view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requitements of IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion theteon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

e Cantract Liabilides and

R 1AL ntracr Assets

As at em| 23, the Company’s Insurance
Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets are
valued at AED 794.855 million and AED 543.266
million, respectively. (Refer note 14).

Valuation of these Insurance contract liabilities and
Reinsurance contract assets involve significant
judgements and estimates particularly with respect to the
eligibility of measurement models and estimation of the
present value of future cash flows.

These cash flows and liabilities primarily include expected
premium receipts, ultimate cost of claims and allocation
of insurance acquisition cashflows which are within the
contract boundaries.

The calculation for these liabilities includes significant
estimation and involvement of actuarial experts in order
to ensure appropriateness of discount rates,
methodology, assumptions and data used to determine
the estimated present value of future cash flows.

As a result of the above factors, we consider valuation of
these assets and liabilities as a key audit matter.

Planned Response

We petformed the following procedures in conjunction
with our actuarial specialists:

Assessment of the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s appointed actuary;
Understanding and evaluating the process, the
design and implementation of controls in place to
determine valuation of Insurance contract liabilities
and Reinsurance contract assets;

Tested the completeness, and on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of data used to determine
future cashflows;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology,
significant assumptions including risk adjustment,
PAA eligibility assessment, discount rates and
expenses included within the fulfilment cashflows.
This included consideration of the reasonableness of
assumptions against actual histotical experience and
the appropriateness of any judgments applied;

Independently reperformed the calculation to assess
the mathematical accuracy of the Insurance contract
liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets on
selected classes of business, particulatly focusing on
largest and most uncertain reserves;

Evaluated and tested the data used in the
impairment model calculations receivables for
amounts due; and

Evaluated and tested the calculation of the allowance
for expected credit loss allowance and the key
assumptions and judgments used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Planned Response

1 (S 17 “Insurance Contracts™

Ane relared disclosure:

The Company adopted IFRS 17 Insutance Contracts
with effect from 1 of January 2023, which resulted in
changes to the measurement of insurance contracts using | -  Assessing whether the judgements applied by

Our audit procedures, among others, include:

updated estimates and assumptions that reflect the timing management in determining their accounting
of cash flows and any uncertainty relating to insurance policies are in accordance with IFRS 17;
contracts.

- Using our actuarial specialist team members,
We determined the disclosure for impact of adopting evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
IFRS 17 to be a key audit matter due to the significant used to determine discount tates as at the transition
changes introduced by the standard, which includes date;

significant estimates and judgements. These impacts will
be of particular importance to the readers of these | . Evaluating the appropriateness of significant
financial statements. (Refer to Note 3 and Note 4). assumptions including risk adjustment, PAA
] eligibility assessment, discount rates and expenses
In particular, we have focused on the following key included within the fulfilment cashflows;
judgements  that management have taken on

implementing IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts: - Bvaluating the completeness, and on sample basis,

o i the accuracy and relevance of the data used to

- The determination of the transition approach adopted determine the impact of IFRS 17 adoption and
for each group of insurance contracts. testatement; and

) Th; mcthpdotlhog? e ted:iand oy assmntl_:rtions: used | | poaluated the reasonableness of the quantitative and
:2 etermine the impact and restatement o previously qualitative disclosures included in the financial
ported numbers in accordance with IFRS 17. shitementsiin secardence with T6RS 11

- Disclosure of the impact of restatement, in
accordance with IFRS 17,

Other Information

Management and ditectors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.].S.C. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended),
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repotting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consideted materal if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud ot etror,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement tesulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from errot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s reporst to the related disclosures in the
financial statements of, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the cutrent period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that

1)  We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

i) The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;

ity 'The Company has maintained proper books of account;

iv)  the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

v) investments in shares and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2023, are disclosed in notes 6 to these financial
statements;

vi) Note 11 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted;

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes us to
believe that the Company has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, contravened any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, or, its Articles of Association, which would materially affect
its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2023; and

viil) The Company did not make any social contribution during the year ended 31 December 2023 as disclosed in note
21,

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended),

we report that we have obtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary for the purpose of our

audit.

—
Wm‘fé?" . ey -
1 harjah - U.A.E,
GRANT THORNTON UAE, 2~ 5.
Fatouk Mohamed 10y ST TFORO S

Registration No: 86
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates
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Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C., we have the pleasure in presenting
our Report on the performance of the Company, along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ending 31 December 2023.

Despite the challenges the company faced due to various restructuring of the business and changes in
management, the Company has achieved a commendable performance during the year. The year was also the
first year of presenting the financial statements under IFRS 17.

Key performance indicators were as follows:

e Inaccordance with Central Bank regulations, the company continues to maintain technical reserves as
recommended by the Appointed Actuary.

e AM Best has revised the outlook to stable from negative and affirmed the Company's Financial Strength
Rating of B+ (Good) and Long-Term Issuer Credit Rating of "bbb—" (Good). According to AM Best’s Press
Release on 14 December 2023 .— “These ratings reflect Union’s balance sheet strength, which AM Best
assesses as strong, as well as its adequate operating performance, limited business profile and marginal
enterprise risk management”.

2023 Financial results

e In 2023, the Company recorded a Gross Premium of AED 727 million, compared to AED 868 million
in 2022.
e Insurance Revenue for 2023 amounted to AED 634 million, compared to AED 763 million for the

same period last year.
e Insurance Service results for the year 2023 amounted to AED 1.2 million, compared to AED 15.3

million in 2022.

e The Company reported an investment profit of AED 17.2 million in 2023, compared to AED 5.9 million
in 2022.

¢ The Net Loss for the year 2023 amounted to AED 2.4 million, compared to AED 2.5 million Profit for
the year 2022.

e Equity as of 01/01/2023, as restated due to the implementation of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9, was AED 207.5
million. The total equity as of 31/12/2023 amounted to AED 205 million.

e The Company's total assets were AED 1.5 billion at the end of 2023, compared to AED 1.5 billion at

the end of 2022.

Based on the financial results for the year 2023, no cash dividends will be distributed to the
shareholders for the year 2023.

The Management takes this opportunity to thank all the shareholders and customers for their continued
support and also expresses sincere appreciation to Company managers and staff for their dedication and hard

work.

For and on behalf of Union Insurance Co. P.J.S.C.

Chairman of the Board
Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almoalla

—N

Head Office: PO Box 119227 Dubai, UAE | Toll Free: 800 UIC4U (84248) | info@unioninsurance.ae | www.unioninsurance.ae | oanchl SR Naty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (the “Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the yeat then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summaty of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fait view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial petformance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements section of
our repott. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emitates, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the tequitements of IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

ion of losur Contract Liabilities and

Reinsurance Contract Assers

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s Insurance
Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets are
valued at AED 794.855 million and AED 543.266
million, respectively. (Refer note 14).

Valuation of these Insurance contract liabilities and
Reinsurance contract assets involve significant
judgements and estimates particularly with respect to the
eligibility of measurement models and estimation of the
present value of future cash flows.

These cash flows and liabilities primarily include expected
premium receipts, ultimate cost of claims and allocation
of insurance acquisition cashflows which are within the
contract boundaties.

The calculation for these liabilities includes significant
estimation and involvement of actuarial experts in order
to ensure appropriateness of discount rates,
methodology, assumptions and data used to determine
the estimated present value of future cash flows.

As a result of the above factors, we consider valuation of
these assets and liabilities as a key audit matter.

Planned Response

We performed the following procedures in conjunction

with our actuarial specialists:

-

Assessment of the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s appointed actuary;

Understanding and evaluating the process, the
design and implementation of controls in place to
determine valuation of Insurance contract liabilities
and Reinsurance contract assets;

Tested the completeness, and on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of data used to determine
future cashflows;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology,
significant assumptions including risk adjustment,
PAA eligibility assessment, discount rates and
expenses included within the fulfilment cashflows.
This included consideration of the reasonableness of
assumptions against actual historical experience and
the appropriateness of any judgments applied;

Independently reperformed the calculation to assess
the mathematical accuracy of the Insurance contract
liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets on
selected classes of business, particulatly focusing on
largest and most uncertain resetves;

Evaluated and tested the data used in the
impairment model calculations teceivables for
amounts due; and

Evaluated and tested the calculation of the allowance
for expected credit loss allowance and the key
assumptions and judgments used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholdets of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter Planned Response

lmpac ting IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

and its related disclosures
The Company adopted IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
with effect from 1 of January 2023, which resulted in

Our audit procedures, among others, include:

changes to the measurement of insurance contracts using | - Assessing whether the judgements applied by
updated estimates and assumptions that reflect the timing management in determining their accounting
of cash flows and any uncertainty relating to insurance policies are in accordance with IFRS 17;

contracts.

- Using our actuarial specialist team members,
We determined the disclosure for impact of adopti:lg evaluated the appmpﬂatgness of the memodology
IFRS 17 to be a key audit matter due to the significant used to determine discount rates as at the transition
changes introduced by the standard, which includes date;

significant estimates and judgements. These impacts will
be of particular importance to the readers of these | . Evaluating the appropriateness of significant
financial statements. (Refer to Note 3 and Note 4). assumptions including risk adjustment, PAA
eligibility assessment, discount rates and expenses
In particular, we have focused on the following key included within the fulfilment cashflows;
judgements  that management have taken on

implementing IFRS 17 Insutance Contracts: - Evaluating the completeness, and on sample basis,

- w2 the accuracy and relevance of the data used to

- The determination of the transition approach adopted determine the impact of IFRS 17 adoption and
for each group of insurance contracts. restatement; and

; Th; mcthpdotlllogqr adopted, and key assumptions: us:ld - Evaluated the reasonableness of the quantitative and
to determine the impact and restatement of previously qualitative disclosures inclnded in the financial
reported numbers in accordance with IFRS 17, sdeinsnne i accaidsncs with TEREYY

- Disclosure of the impact of restatement, in
accordance with IFRS 17.

Other Information

Management and ditectors are responsible for the other information. The other information comptises the information
included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exptess any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to teport in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the applicable ptovisions of the UAE
Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended),
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those chatged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repotting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assutance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ertor and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement tesulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from ertot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ot conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ate based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair
presentation,



GrantThornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that

1)  We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

i) The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;

ity The Company has maintained proper books of account;

iv) the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

v) investments in shares and stocks duting the year ended 31 December 2023, are disclosed in notes 6 to these financial
statements;

vi) Note 11 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted;

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes us to
believe that the Company has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, contravened any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, or, its Articles of Association, which would materially affect
its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2023; and

vii) The Company did not make any social contribution during the year ended 31 December 2023 as disclosed in note
27.

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended),

audit.

. RN 2,0 ! Q

G\M"Jmlf P.0. Box: 1968
LA Sharjah - U.A.E,

GRANT THO 'égN!U ¢ PR

Farouk Mohamed N0 SANT TRORNTOY

Registration No: 86
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates

19 MAR 2024




Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2023

Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use-assets
Unit linked assets
Investment securities
Statutory deposit
Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance contract assets
Other receivables
Bank deposits with original maturities of
more than three months
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve
Special reserve

Fair value reserve
Reinsurance reserve
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Liabilities

Provision for employees’ end of service
benefits

Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract liabilities

Other payables

Unit linked liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

17
24.1
6.3

14
14
16

8.2
8.1

101
10.2
10.3
10.4

25

14
14
18
13

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Restated Restated
64,195 66,929 70,446
3,141 8,723 14,574
3,864 6,861 637
403,157 349,613 368,887
72,288 76,779 47,888
10,000 10,000 10,000
543,266 627,414 666,186
31,087 37,482 2,293
42,966 47,131 45,400
294,570 68,888 205,965
38,285 205,667 91,881
1,506,819 1,505,487 1,524,157
330,939 330,939 330,939
18,020 18,020 16,187
18,020 18,020 16,187
163 166 156
9,525 7,406 4,885
(171,641) (167,043) (163,362)
205,026 207,508 204,992
13,954 14,424 12,873
794,855 849,452 884,789
19,504 24,794 422
103,196 78,514 68,275
370,284 330,795 352,806
1,301,793 1,297,979 1,319,165
1,506,819 1,505,487 1,524,157

To the best of our knowledge, the financial information present fairly in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operation and cash flows of the Company as of, and for the year ended 31 December 2023. These financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 Margh 2024 and signed on their behalf by:

—~

Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almolla
Chairman

Ramez Abou Zaid
Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C.

Staternent of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenscs

Insutance service result before reinsurance
contracts held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Amounts recoverable from reinsurance for incurred claims

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held
Insurance service result

Interest revenue caleulated using the effective interest
method

Net gain on financial assets at FVTPL

Other investment income

Total investment incomme

Insurance finance {expenses)/income from insurance
coniracts issued

Reinsurance finance income/(expense) from reinsurance
contracts held

Net insurance financial resulit

Net insurance and investment resulis
Other operating expenses

(Loss) /profit for the period
Basic and diluted (loss) / eatnings per share

Notes

19
20

22

21

21

23

26

2023 2022
AED 600 AED’000
Restated

633,537 763,286
(428,480) {588,903)
205,057 174,383
(386,240) (459,125)
182,397 300,115
{203,843} (159,010)
1214 15373
13,430 6,149
1,254 2,116)
2,529 1,961
17,213 5,994
(20,895) 9,863
23,064 (13818
2,169 (3,95%)
20,596 17,412
(23,075) {14,906)
(2,479) 2.506
(0.007) 0.008

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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- Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Ttemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Change in fair value of equity investments held at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/mcome for the year

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral patt of these financial starements.

2023 2022
AED000 AED’000
Restated

(2,479 2,506
3) 10

3) 10
(2,482) 2,516

9
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
{TL.oss)/profit for the yeat

Adjustments for:

Depreciaton and amortisadon

Loss/{gain) on disposal of propetty and equipment
Gain on disposal of investments at FVIPL
Write-off of CWIP

Untealised (gain)/loss on investments at FVTPL
Interest income

Dividend income

Interest on lease liabilides

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Change in:

Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance contract assets

Other receivables

Reinsurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities

Other payables

Unit linked assets

Unit linked liabilities

Cash generated from opetating activities
Employees” end of service indemnity paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of investments held at FVIPL (excluding unit linked assets)

Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVIPL (excluding unit linked assets)

Interest received

Dividends received

Maturities of fixed deposits with banks with otiginal maturities greater than three
months

Net cash (used in}/generated from investing activites

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of Jease liabilities
Ner cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginniag of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Nortcash transactions

Rights of use asset

Lease liability

Transfer from CWIP to propesty and equipment and intangible assets
Transfer to property and equipment and intangible assets from CWIP

Notes 2023 2022
AED000  AED'000

(2,479) 2,506

10,251 11,476

1,298 )

22 (833) (3.173)
673 2,134

22 (421 5,280
22 (13,430) (6,149)
22 (3,540) (3,018)
24.2 356 413
2,031 2,885

(6,094 12,362

84,148 38,772

6,395 (35,189)

4,165 (1,731)

(5,290) 24,372

(54,597) (35,337)

27,720 3,416

(53,544) 19,274

39,489 (22,011)

42,392 3,028

25 (2,50) (1,334)
35,801 2,504

(926) (1,228)

17 3

6.4 (8,942) (67,155)
6.4 14,684 36,158
13,430 6,149

3,540 3,018

(225,682) 137,077

(203,879) 114,022

24,2 (3,394) (2,830)
(3,394) {2,830y

(167,382) 113,786

8.1 205,667 91,881
8.1 38,285 205,667
- 9,240

. (9,240)

. 1,516

- (1,516)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1. General information

Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C, (the "Company") is incorporated as a public shateholding company and operates
in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE"} undet a trade license issued by the Government of Dubal. ‘The Company is
registered under the UAE Federal Law No. (32} of 2021, relating to commercial companies. The Company is
registered with the losurance Companies Register of the Central Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE”) under tegistration
number 67. The Company's registered cotporate office is at Single Business Tower, Sheikh Zayed Road, P.O. Box
119227, Dubai, United Arab Emirates ("UAE"). The Company’s otdinaty shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi
Secutdties BExchange (“ADX).

The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all types including life assurance. The Company
operates through its Head Office in Dubai and Branch Offices in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Sharjah, Ajman, and Ras Al
Khaimah.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the applicable Jaws and
regulations, including the AR Federal Law No. (32} of 2021.

During the year, Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 has been issued with effective date of 30 November 2023, repealing
Federal Law No, 6 of 2007. In accordance with Article 112 of the Federal Law No. 48 of 2023, the Company has 6
months from this date to apply the provisions of the new Law, The Company is in the process of reviewing the new
provisions and will apply the requirements thereof in the required time.

2, Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that
have been measured at revalued amounts, amertised cost ot fair value as explained in the accounting policies
below.

21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) promulgated by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and interpretations thereof issued by
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“TFRS 1C™) and in compliance with the applicable tequirements of the United
Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 (“Companies Law’”), relating 1o commercial companies
and United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as
amended) concerning Insurance Law issued by the Central Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE”) and regulaton of its
operations.

2.2 Going concern

The validity of the going concern assumptions is dependent upon future operations and ability of the Company to
generate sufficient cash flows to meet its future obligations. The Company has sufficient cash balances as of 31
December 2023 and future plans indicate that the Company will be profitable and will generate sufficient cash Hows.

The Company’s directots are, therefore, confident that the Company will be able to mect its liabilities as and when they
fall due and to carry on its business without a significant cartailment of operations. Accordingly, these finandial
statements have been prepared on a going concern,

12



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. Basis of preparation {continued)
23 Accumulated losses

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s accumulated losses represent 51.86% of the share capital of the Company
{31 December 2022 (restated): 50.48 %). Article 309 of the Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 requires a Company
to conduct a meeting of genetal assembly in case the accumulated losses exceed 50% of a Company’s share capital.
Accordingly, the Company conducted a general assembly meeting on 11 January 2024 and passed a resolution for
continuity of the Company’s operations. Further, as per the requitement of this law, the Company has prepared a
business plan and subtnitted it to Secutities and Comimodities Authority (SCA) along with the reasons for the
accumulated losses. A summary of the accumulated losses and Company’s strategy to couniter the accumulated losses
is provided below:

History of accumulated losses:

~ Provision for real estate properties — An amount of AED 72.3 million reptesents a provision made
duting the year ended 31 December 2021 for investment propetties purchased from a former relared party
who failed to fulfil its obligations, in relation to the said asset. A legal action is underway to recover
Company’s rights under this transaction.

- Impairment of freehold land — A decline in the faiy value of the freehold land by AED 22.83 million
during the year ended 31 December 2021, Originally the land was recorded at AED 82,04 million.
Subsequently, an impairment loss was booked ‘due to the decline in the fair value of the land to AED
59.21 million in the priot yeats.

- Doubtful receivables frotn a former related party — A provision made amounting to AED 26.2¢ million
during the year ended 31 December 2019. This is related to receivables from a former related party, the
Company filed a lawsuit in order to recover the amount, however, the lawsuit was not accepred as it was
time barted.

- Initial adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Accumulated losses increased by AED 35.7 million due to
the implementation of IFRS 17, which is effective for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2023
with a full retrospective application. IFRS 9 adoption resulted in an additional increase of AED 10 million
in the accurnulated losses due to the change from the impairment model applied under 1AS 39 to the
expected credit losses required by IFRS 9,

‘The Company has taken following measures to counter its accumulated losses:

- Focus investments towards bank deposits and other short term investments in order to maintain strong
liquidity position.

- Robust credit control measures taken to speed up the recovery process targeted to reduce the expected credit
losses recorded by the Company.

- Focus on profitable business scgments and discontinuation of Company’s life insurance operations which
was previously a loss-making portfolio.

- Formation of a boatrd committee specifically responsible to oversee the accumulated losses and ensure
executon of the Company’s business plan.

13



Union Insurance Company P.J.5.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued}
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2, Basis of preparation (continued)
24 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™)

2.41  Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are effective from 1
January 2023

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the IASB:

Standard nurnber Title Effective date
Disclosure of Aecounting Policies — Amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS

IAS 1 Practice Statement 2 1 Januaty 2023
IAS 8 Definition of Accountng Estimates — Amendments to TAS 8 1 January 2023
Defetred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities atising from a single
14512 transaction — Amendments to TAS 12 1 Janary 2023
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

The above standards have been adopted by the Company and did not have a material impact on these financial
statements, except for the adeption of “IFRS 17 Insurance contracts™.

Further, the Company also adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments’ along with application of IFRS 17. The Company
adopted the impairment tequirements of IFRS 9, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to
the amounts previously recognised in the financial statements. The Company recorded an additional impairment
allowance on its expected premium and reinsurance receipts in accordance with the expected credit loss model.

Details of the Company’s accounting policy information relared to Financial Instruments and Insurance Contracts has
been added in Note 3.

14



Union Insurance Company P.J.S8.C.

Notes to the financia! statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 Basis of preparation {continued)

2.4 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

(continued)

2.4.2 Fransition impact

‘The Company has applied the transidon provisions in IFRS 9 and effects the of adopting these standards on
the financial statements as at 1 Januvary 2022 and 31 December 2022 ate presented below:

31 December 2022

Assets

Insurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance and othet receivables
Other receivables

Eiabilities

Insurance and other payables
Other payables

Insurance contract liabilides
Reinsutance contract liabilitdes

Equity

Accumulated losses

1 January 2022

Assets

Insurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance and other receivables
Othet receivables

Liabilities

Insurance and other payables
Othet payables

Insurance contract lishilities
Reinsurance contract Habilities

Equity
Accumulated losses

Effect of
As previously application of
reported IFRS 17 & IFRS 9

As restated

AED000 AED000 AED000
- 37,482 37,482
753,776 {126,362} 627,414
338,607 (338,607) -
- 47,131 47,131
259,612 {259,612) -
- 78,514 78,514
1,008,371 (158,915 849,452
- 24,794 24,794
(120,726) (46,317) (167,043)
As previously Effect of As restated
reporied application of
IFRS 17 & IFRS 9
AED'000 AED000 AED000
- 2,293 2,293
831,514 {165,328) 666,180
356,202 (356,202) -
- 45,400 45,400
275,500 (275,500) -
- 68,275 68,275
1,105,249 (220,460) 884,789
- 422 422
(132,869) (30,493) {163,362)
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. Basis of pteparation (continued)

24 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
{continued)

243 Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, intetptetations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the
date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard nurnber Title Effective date

IAS1 Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-current Habilities with covenants 1 January 2024

IFRS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
3. Material accounting policy information

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measutement, presentation and disclosure of insutatice contracts,
reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with discretdonary patticipation features. It introduces @ model that
measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s estimates of the present value of future cash flows that are
expected to axise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit tisk adjustment for non-financial risk and a
contractual service margin.

Under IFRS 17, insurance revenue in cach repotting petiod represents the changes in the liabilities for remaining
coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive consideration and an allocadon of
premiums that relate to recovering insurance acquisition cash flows. In additon, investment components are no
longer included in insurance revenue and insurance service expenses.

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of contracts in the non-life segment. When measuring
liabilities for temaining coverage, the PAA is similar to the Company’s previous accounting treatment. However,
when measuring liabilittes for incurred claims, the Company now discounts the future cash flows (unless they ate
expected to occur in one year ot less from the date on which the claims are incurred) and mcludes an explicit risk
adjustment for non-financial risk.

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts for annual periods on or after 1 fanuary 2023, The Company has
restated comparative information applying the transitional provisions to IFRS 17.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {continued)
Recognition

Recognition requircments are slightly different for issued contracts and held contracts. For groups of issued
contracts, a group should be recognised at the earliest of the following:

- Beginning of the coverage petiod,;
- Date when the first payment from a policyholder becomes due; and
- For a group of onerous cantracts, when the group becomes onerous.

Reinsurance conttacts held by an entity are recognised on the eatlier of:

- Beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsutance contracts held; and
- Date the entity recognises an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts provided the reinsurance
contract was in force on or before that date.

Regatrdless of the first point above, the recognition of proportional reinsutance contracts held shall be delayed until
the recognition of the first undetlying contract issued under that reinsurance contract.

Level of Aggregation

Level of aggregation relates to the unit of account under [FRS 17. The unit of account under IFRS 17 is referred to
as a ‘Group of Contracts” and requirements relating to level of aggregation define how groups of contracts have to
be determined.

The standard has set out the following requiternents to determine a group of contracts:

- Portfolio -- contracts that have similar risks and that are managed together can be grouped.
- Profitability — contracts with similar expected profitability (at inception or initial recognition) can be

grouped.

For this putpose, the standard has mandated at least the following three classifications howevet it is permitted to use
more granular classifications:

- Contracts that are onerous at incepton;
- Contracts that are not oncrous and have no significant possibility of becoming onerous; and
- All other contracts

Cohorts

Contracts issued more than 12 months apart cannot be grouped together. However, in certain citcumstances a one-
titne simplificadon wpon transiton for contracts as at the transitfon is allowed.

A unique combination of the above three requirements forms a group of contracts i.e., contracts with same portfolio,
same expected profitability and issued in the same year can be grouped together. This grouping is permanent and
cannot be changed once assigned, regatdless of how the actual experience emerges after initial tecognition. For
instance, as expetience emerges an entity may tealise that a contract which was thought to be onetous at initial
recoghition is not onerous, but the grouping will not be changed.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement Models

Measutement model, in rudimentary terms, refers to the basis or a set of methodologies for the compuration of
insurance contract assets and liabilities and associated revenues and expenses. IFRS 17 has provided the following
three measurement models:

Premium Allocation Approach (“PAA™)

PAA is an optional simplification that an entity can apply to contracts that have a coverage period of up ta 12 months
or to contracts for which it can demonstrate that the liability for remaining coverage will not be materially different
under PAA and GMM. In terms of computations, the major simplification relates to LRC.

Under PAA, it is not required to consider each component of the premium separately instead a single liability can be
set up. The components of Eability under PAA as at any valuation date can be sumnmarised as follows:

Liability for Rernaining Coverage (“LRC”)
- Eaxcluding Loss Component
- Loss Component, if any

Liability for Incurred Claims (“LIC")
- Estimates of future cashflows
- Risk adjustment
- Discounting of estirnates of future cashflows

All of the Company’s short-term business is eligible for this simplification atd the Company has adopted this
simplification for the eligible business. Under PAA, loss component and claim reserves requites an explicit provision
of risk adjustment this would increase the liabilities whereas discounting will generally decrease the Habilities. The net
effect of PAA depends on whether the impact of tisk adjustment is greater than the impact of discounting or the
impact deferring additional expenses that are currently not deferred.

General Measurement Model (“GMM?”)

GMM is the default measurtement model and is applied to all contracts to which Premium Allocation Approach
(“PAA”) and Vatiable Fees Approach (“VFA™) are not applied. GMM is based on the premise that premiums {or
considerations) for insurance contracts comprises of certain components (such claims, expenses and profits) and that
each component needs to be considered according to its nature. The liability under GMM as at any valuation date
caomprtises of the following:

Liability for Remaining Coverage (“LLRC™)

- Estimates of future cashflows

- Risk adjustment

- Discounting of estimates of future cashflows
- Contractual Service Margin (“CSM™)

Liability for Incurred Claims (“LIC”)

- Estmates of future cashflows
- Risk adjustment
- Discounting of estimates of future cashflows

18



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continned)
Yor the year ended 31 December 2023

3. Material acconnting policy information (continued)
IERS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Variable Fees Approach (“VFA”)

VFA is a mandatory modification to contracts with direct participation features. A contract is a contract with direct
patticipation feature if it meets all three of the following requirements:

* Contractual terms specify that the policyholder participates in a shate of a clearly identified pool of underlying items.

* The entity expects to pay to the policyhelder an amount equal to a substantial share of the fair value returns on
the underlying iterns.

* ‘The entity expects a substantial proportion of any change in the amounts to be paid to the policyholder to vary
with the change in the fair value of the undetlying items.

The components of the liability under VEFA ate same as GMM and their calculations are quite similar too except for
the computation of CSM. Under VFA, CSM calculations reflect the vardability related to undetlying items, but GMM
does not reflect this variability. Similarly, there ate some other aspects related to financial risk that impact the CSM
under VEA but, not under GMM.

The measurement models have been discussed above are in context of insurance contracts issued and associated
liabilities, but same principles are applicable to reinsurance contract held and associated assets (except for VFEA).
Similarly, both LRC and LIC components are mentioned however, at initial recognition only LRC is applicable.

Estimates of future cashflows, risk adjustrnent and discounting are collectively referred to as the Fulfilment Cashflows
(“FCF”). In terms of revenues and expense GMM and VFA are quite sirmilar however, a significant difference exists
between GMM/VFA and PAA. The revenues under GMM and VFA show each component of the premium separately
(such as expected claims and expenses} wheteas under PAA, the revenue shows just an aggregate amount,

Company’s unit-linked business is measured using VFA, all other long-term business is measured using GMM. Thete
are fundamental differences between GMM / VFA and the cutrent methodologies for the long-term business. The
key differences are discussed below:

- Under IFRS 17 assets or Labilides will be determined using gross premium calculations as opposed to zisk
premium calculations. This implies that under IFRS 17 all components of assets or Babilities such as expenses
or profits will be computed explicitly. This also implies that expenses or costs that occur only at the start will
be deferred implicitly. The impact of this difference cannot be generalised as it depends on whether the implicit
margins within risk-premium based caleulations are higher of lower than those required in gross-premium
based calculations.

- Similar to PAA, GMM and VEA also require an explicit risk adjustrent. Risk adjustment is a new requirement,
and it does not exist under the current standard. Risk adjustment will inctease the liabilides for insurance
contracts issued and increases the asset for the reinsurance contracts held.

- IFRS 17 also introduces substantial changes to the pattern in which profits are recognised for long- term
contracts it requites that the profits to be recognised in relaton to the setvice provided. The new standard
introduces 2 new measure, ‘coverage units’, to quantify the services provided in any period, Given that single
premium contracts recognise all expected profits at the start of the coverage whereas services ate provided
throughout that covetage period, it is expected that under IFRS 17 profit recognition for single premium
contracts will be delayed and thetefore the net labilities will increase because of this requirement. Similarly,
for limired-payment plans, all expected profits are recognised by the end of the payment term and therefore
the profits for these will also be relatively delayed in IFRS 17. The impact for regular payment plans will
depend on how close the sexvice pattern is to the one currently implied under the plans.

- The definition of revenue under GMM and VFA is quite different for leng-term contracts. Under IFRS 17
trevenue (ot consideration} is more ditect and separately includes each component of the premium (..,
expected claims and expenses and the pottion of the profits relating w the period).
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Estimates of Future Cashflows

The standard requires that future cashflows should be estimated 4l the end of the contract boundary. End of contract
boundary is defined as the point at which an entity can cithet reassess the tisk or consideration i.e., premium, The standard
does not provide the methodology for the estmation of future cashflows however, it does provide detailed guidance on
the cashflows that are within and beyond the contract boundaty. It also provides certain principles in telation to the
estimates of future cashflows.

Discounting

The standard requites the estimates of future cashflows should be discounted te reflect the effect of time value of
money and financial risks. Similar to other provisions it does not specify 2 methodology for discounting or the
derivation of discount rates however, it sets out certain principles. The standard does recognise the following two
approaches for the derivation of the discount rates;

- Bottom-Up: An approach whete 2 risk-free rate or yield curve is used and an illiquidity premium is added to
reflect the characteristics of the cashflows,

- Top-Down: An approach where the expected yield on a reference portfolio is used and adjustments are applied
to reflect the differences between the liabllity cashflow chatacteristics and the charactetistics of the reference
portfolio,

For cashflows that are linked to the undetlying items for contracts with direct participation features, the discount
rates must be consistent with other estimates used to measure insurance contracts. The above two approaches may
have to be adjusted to reflect the variability in the underlying items for such cashflows.

Contractual Service Margin (“CSM™)

“Contractual Service Margin (CSM) represents the unearned profit the entty will recognise as it provides insurance
contract services in the future. At mitial recognition CSM is computed using the fulfillment cash flows (FCF) whereas at
subsequent measurement CSM is computed using the opening CSM balance and various adjustments relating to the
period. A portion of CSM is released to Profit & Loss as revenue in every petiod using coverage units.

Onerous Contracts and Loss Components

When a group of contracts, whether at initial recognition or subsequently, is ot becomes onerous a loss component
liability must be maintained. Undet GMM and VFA this liability is implicitly included in the FCFs for LRC but for
PAA an explicit loss component over the base LRC must be computed and set aside.

Transition

The defauit transition approach under IFRS 17 is the Full Retrospective Approach (“FRA”) which requites that
upon transition IFRS 17 should be applied from inception of the groups of contracts as if IFRS 17 has always been
applicable. However, if FRA is impracticable the following methods may be adopted:

- Modified Retrospective Approach (“MRA™): Under this approach the objective is to achieve the closest possible
approximaton to the FRA using the modifications allowed within the standard and without undue cost and
effort.

- Fair Value Approach (“FVA™): Under this approach the fair value of the groups of contracts is computed and
compated with the FCF. The CSM or loss component is the difference between the fair value and the FCF.
Fair values for this purpose must be computed applying IFRS 13.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

I¥RS 17 Insurance Contracts {continued)

Key Accounting Policy Choices

TFRS 17 tequires Company to mazke varicus accounting policy choices, The key accounting policy choices made by the
Company are described below.

granular cchort

Accounting Policy Company Decision
Level of Aggregadon — | Company has adopted the minimum three classifications provided in the standard
Adopting more and not use more granular classifications.
granulat profitability
Level of Aggtregation —
Adopting more Company is using annual cohosts and not shorter cohotts.

PAA — Deferting
insutance acquisition
cashflows

Under PAA, in some circumstances, it is allowed to recognise insurance acquisition
cashflows as expense when incurred however, the Company does not apply this
choice instead it defers all insutance acquisition cashflows.

PAA - Discounting LIC

Undet PAA, in some citcumstances, it is allowed not to discount the LIC, but
Company is not using this option and discounts all LIC,

The standatrd allows that finance expense to be split between OCI, and P&L.

Interest Accretion — Company aims to reflect entire finance expense in the P&L and plans not to split
OCI Option between OCI and P&L.
Transition Approach | The Company is using Modified Retrospéctivc Approach,

Revenue recognition

Insurance revenue and reinsurance expenses — methods and assumptions used in the determination of the contractual
service matgin (CSM) to be recognised in statement of profit or loss for the insurance contract services provided or
teceived in the year.

For contracts measured under the General Measurement Model (GMM) in which the Company has discretion over the
cash flows to be paid to the policyholders, judgement might be involved in the determination of what the Company
considers its commitment on initial recognition of such contracts. Further, judgement might be required to distinguish
subsequent changes in the fulfilment cash flows (FCF) resulting from changes in the Company’s commitment and those
resulting from changes in assumptions that relate to the financial risk on that commitment.

Finance income or expenses from insurance contracts issued

Insurance finance income ot expenses Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying
amount of the group of insurance contracts atising from:

Interest accreted on the CSM;

Interest accreted on the PAA LRC excluding the LC (if adjusted for the financing effect);

The financing effect on the LC measured under the PAA (if adjusted for the financing effect);

The effect of changes in FCFs at current rates, when the corresponding CSM unlocking is measured at the
locked in rates;

Any interest charped to or added to insurance / reinsurance asset or liability balances; and

The cffect of changes in interest rates and othet financial assumptions.

»
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Finance income ot expenses ftom insurance contracts issued (continued)

For all groups of contracts, the Company disaggregates insurance finance income or expenses for the period
between profit ot loss and other comprehensive income (that is, the OCI option is applied). The finance income
and expenses from insurance contracts issued recognised in the statement of profit or loss reflects the unwind of
the liabilities at the locked-in rates. The remaining amount of finance income and expenses from Insurance contracts
issued for the petiod is recognised in GCL

Other revenue recognition
(a} Interest incomse

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments is calculated by applying the effective
intetcst ratc to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credir-impaired (or stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by applying the cffective
intetest rate to their amortised cost (1.e. net of the expected ereditloss provision) and are recognised within ‘interest
income’ in the statement of profit or loss.

(B} Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised in the statement of profir or loss when the Company’s right to
receive dividend has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

(¢} Reinsurance commission earned

Comtnissions earsted ate recognised fully at the time the related insurance contracts are written.
Foreign currencies

Functonal and presentation cutrency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity opetates (‘the functional curtency’). The Company’s financial
statements are presented in United Arab Emirates Ditham (“AED™), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation cutrency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign cutrency transactions are translated into the functional cutrrency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactons, and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, ate
generally recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss, within “Administrative expenses™.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange tates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translaton differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair valuc
ate reported as patt of the fair value gain or Joss. For example, translation differences on non-monetaty assets
and liabilitics such as equities held at fait value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fafr value gain or loss, and translation differences on non-monetacy assets such as equities classified as at fah
value through other comprehensive income are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income.
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3. Material accounting policy informaton (continued)
Segment reporting

For management putposes, the Company is organised into two business segments based on their products and
services and has two business segments as follows:

(a) The general insurance segment comptiscs of property, fite, matine, motot, medical, general aceident and
miscellaneous tisks.

(b} The life assurance segment offers shott term and long term life insurance. Revenue from this segment is
detived primarily from insurance premium, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value
gains and losses on investments.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit ot loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from profit or
loss in the financial statements. No inter-segment transactions occurred dusing the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, If any transaction were to occut, transfet prices between operating segments would be set on an arm’s
length basis in 2 manner similar to transactdons with third parties.

Operating segments are teported i a manner consistent with the intetnal teporting provided to the chief
operating decision maket.

The two operating segmernts i.e. General Insurance and Life Insurance segments, oraganised under two Presidents
who report into the Chief Executive Officer. The Board and its vatious committees have oversight on the overall
operations of the company.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment comptises of frechold land, furniture and fixture, office equipment, motot vehicles,
computer equipment and capital work in progress.

Property and equipment is carried at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation any recognised impaitment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisidon of the items. These assets
are classified to the appropriate categories of property and equipment when completed and ready for their
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when
the assets ate ready for their intended use,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approptiate,
only when it is probable that futute economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cartying amount of any component accounted for as 2 separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Freebold land is not depreciated.

Capital work in progress is stated at the lower of cost or net tealisable value. The cost includes the cost of
consttuction and other related expenditare which are capitalised as and when activities that are necessary to get
the assets ready for use ate in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable value based on
expected future usage. Management reviews the carrying values of the capital work in progress on an annual basis,

Capital work in progress are considered t0 be completed when all related activities, for the entire assets have been
completed. Upen completion, those are transferred to property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement
of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.
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3 Material accounting policy information {continued)

Property and equipment (contnued}

Expenditure incurted to replace a component of an item of propetty and equipment that is accounted for
scparately is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off, Other
subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases {uture economic benefirs of the related item of
property and equipment. All other expenditute is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as the expense is
incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to wtite off the cost of assets, other than capital wotk in progress, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The vseful life considered in calculadon of depreciation for all the assets is as follows:
*  Office equipment & computer equipment - 5 years
¢  Motor vehicles - 4 years
¢ Furniture and fixtures - 12 years

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software and license fee for access to know how,

(a} Software

Costs associated with maintaining computer softwate programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are ditectly atttibutable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met;

® It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

Management intends to complete the software product and usc or sell it;

Thete is an ability to use or sell the software product;

It can be demonstrated how the software product will gencrate probable future economic benefits;
Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

® The expenditute attributable to the software product duting its development can be reliably measured.

* & »

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as patt of the softwate product include the software development
etnployee costs and an appropriate portion of directly attributable overheads.

The estimnated useful life and amortisation method ate reviewed at the end of each annual repotting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in the
calculation of amottisation is 5 yeats.

(b) License know how

Licenses know how is shown at historical cost, It has a definite useful life and is cartied at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. Amottsation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost license
over their estimated useful lives i.e. 5 yeats.
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Leases

The Company leases office premises. Rental contract of the leases range from 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreement
does not impose any covenants, but leased assets cannot be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases ate recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability within “Insurance and other payables”
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between
the Hability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant petiodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over shorter of the asset’s useful life or the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities atising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis, Lease liabilitics include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

* fixed payments {(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

¢ variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantecs; and

* payments of penaltes for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably cettain extension options are also included in the measurement of
the lability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessaty to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measuted at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
any initial ditect costs; and

testoration costs.

Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the caszying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense ovet the lease tetm on the same basis as lease income.

Extension and teamination options

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercisc 2 termination option, Extension options (or periods
after termination options) atc only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated),

Fot buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant.

¢ if there ate significant penalties to texminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate);

¢ if any leasebold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically
reasonably certain to extend (ot not terminate); and

»  otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption requited to replace the leased asset.

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in citcumstances occurs which affects
this assessment and that is within the control of the lessee. Termination option is included in the property lease
of the Company. This option held is exetcisable by the Company and the lessor. Payments assoclated with short-
tertn leases of premises are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with 2 lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a Hability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Financial instruments
(a} Investmenis and other financial assets
() Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measnrement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through OCI ot through profit or loss), and
¢ those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fait value, gains and losses will either be tecorded in statement of
profit or loss or statement of other comptehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an ittevocable electon at the time of initial
tecognition to account for the equity investment at fait value through other comptehensive income. The
Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognidon

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the “trade date”, i.e, the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the ime frame generally established by tegulation ot convention in
the matketplace. Financial assets are derecognised when the tights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transfetred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fait value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit ot loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Ttansaction costs of financial assets carried at FVIPL are expensed in profit or loss,
Financial assets with embedded detivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows ate solely payment of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt insttuments:

*  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Intetest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss atising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in “Net investment income/ (loss)” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses, Impaimment losses are included within ‘Net investment income/(loss)” in the
statement of profit or loss.

¢ FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the ctiteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVIPL, A gain
or loss on a debt invesunent that is subsequently measured at FV'TPL is recognised in the income statement
and is presented net within Wer investment income’ in the period in which it arises,
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3 Matetial accounting policy information (continued}
Financial insttuments (continued)

(i) Measurement {continued)

*  FVTOCL Assets that are held for collecton of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVIOCE
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through QCI, except for the recognition of impaitment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which ate recognised in profit or loss, When
the financial asset is detecognised, the cumulative gain ot loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in ‘Net investment income’. Interest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. FFoteign exchange gains and losses are presented
in ‘Net investment income’,

Eguity investments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVIPL, excepr where the Company’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to ittevocably designate an equity investment at FYTOCE. The
Company’s policy is to designate equity investments at FVTOCI when those investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised
in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit ot loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing
a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as “Net investment income / (loss)”
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

The unit-linked assets include investrnents held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products, financial assets
from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit linked products contracts and cash held on behalf of policyholdets.
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products and financial assets from reinsurer towatds
policyholders of unit linked products contracts are accrued to the account of the contract holder at the fair value
of the net gains atising from the underlying linked assets. All these contracts ate designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and wete designated in this caregory upon initial recognition. Cash held on behalf of policyholders
are designated as amortised cost investment designated in this category upon initial recognition.

Inpairmgent and uncollectibility of financial assery

"The Company assesses the collectability of its financial assets based on its credit policy and default events. Refer
to (h) below for impairment of insurance and other receivables.

(B} Insurance and other receivables

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (HCL) on financial assets carried
at amortised cost and debt instruments classified as FVOCI. Assets migrate through the three stages based on
the change in credit quality since initial recognition.

Overview

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for debt financial assets not held at FVIPL.
Hquity instruments are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9,

The ECL aliowarnice is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset {the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since otigination, in which case,
the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss (“12mBCL"). The 12mECL is the pottion of
LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting dare.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)
Impairment of financial assets {continued)
Overview (continued)

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting petiod, of whether a
financial instrument’s credit risk has mcreased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the
risk of default occutring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categorizes its FVOCI assets into stages as described below:

Stage 1:  When financial instruments ate fitst tecognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 month
ECLs. Stage 1 also include financial instruments whete the credit risk has improved and the has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2@ When a financial instrument has shown a significant inctease in credit risk since origination, the Company
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs. Stage 2 also include instruments, whete the credit risk has
improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Srage 3.

Stage 3: Includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these assets,
lifetime ECL are recognised and treated, along with the interests calculated. When transidoning financial
assets from stage 2 to stage 3, the percentage of provision made for such assets should not be less than the
percentage of provision made before transition. Purchased or originated credit impaired assets ate financial
assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition and are recorded at fair valize at original recognition and
interest income is subsequently recognised based on a credit adjusted EIR. ECLs ate only recognised or
teleased to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding
amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is redueced. This is considered a
(pattal} derecogniton of the financial asset. The accounts which are restructured due to credit reasons in past 12
months will be classified under stage 2.

The calculatdon of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to
an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the
ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

¢ The Probability of Default ("PD") is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time hotizon.

®* The Exposute at Default ("EAD ") is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
cxpected changes in the exposure after the reporting date,

* The Loss Given Defauit ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occuts at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that are expected to receive,
inclading from the realisation of any collateral,

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that are
accousited for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross carrying value. The mechanics of the ECL method are
summatised below:

Stage 1: The 12 month BECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that resuit from default
events on 4 financial instrument that ate possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company
calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occusring in the 12 months following
the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities ate applied to a forecast EAD and
multiplied by the expected LGI) and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The calcuiation of ECLs (conrnued)

Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit tisk since otigination, the Company records
an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics arc similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs ate
estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an
approximation to the otiginal EIR.

Stage 3: For financial asset considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for
these financial assets. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the cartying amount of these financial assets in the
statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise
if the assets were measured at amortised cost is trecopnised in other comptehensive income as an accumulated
impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the profit ot loss upon derecognition of the assets.

Forward looking information

The Company, for forward locking information, relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic
inputs, such as:

¢ GDP growth
* Ol prices

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always captute all charactetistics of the market at the date
of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary
adjustments when such differences are significantly material

(¢} Fenancial Fabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the conttactual tights and obligations in
the contract.

All financial Labilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is notat FVTPL)
transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost, unless the Company opted to measure a liability at FVIPL,

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities included in insurance and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost. The fair value of 2 non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date
of the liability is less than one yeat, discounting is omitted.

29



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.
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3. Material accounting policy information {continued)

Financial instruments (continued}

Opfserting of financial qssets and fabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilides ate offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and
expense will not be offset in the statement of profit ot loss unless requited or permitted by any accountng
standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

(d) Cash and cash squivatents

For the putpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial insttutions, othet short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant tisk of
change in value less overdrafts with banks. Bank overdrafts are shown within liabilities in the staternent of
financial position.

(¢} Bank deposits with banks with original matnrities of more than three months

Deposits held with banks with original matutities of mote than three months are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether thete is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, ot when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
tecoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the catrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaised and is wtitten down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using discount
tates that reflect current matket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an approptiate valuation model is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators. Impairment
losses are recognised in the staterent of profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each teporting date as to whether there s any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist ot may have decteased. [f such indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recogoised impaitment loss s reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
irapairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That necreased amount cannot exceed the cartying amount that would have been detetmined, nct of
amottisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in priot yeats, Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss,
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an cutflow of tesources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to setfle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting petiod, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, Where a provision Is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an agset if it is
virtually certain that teimbursernent will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company ptovides end of service benefits to its expattiate employeces in accordance with the UAE Labor
Law,

The entidement to these benefits is based upon the employees' salary and the length of service, subject to the
completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits ate accrued over the period of
employment.

Defined contribution plan for UAE national employees

The Company is 2 member of the pension scheme operated by the Federal Pension General and Social Security
Authotity, Contributions for eligible UAE Nadonal employees are made and charged to the statement of profir
or loss, in accordance with the provisions of Federal Law No. 7 of 1999 relating to pension and Social Security
Law. The employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculaton salary”
respecdvely, to the scheme, The only obligaton of the Company with respect to the retirement pension and social
security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of profit or
loss.

An accrual has been made for the past contributions relating to the services rendered by the eligible UAE National
employees up to 31 December 2023. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits 1s probable.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

(a} A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
{iy Huas control or joint contrel over the Company;
{iiy Has significant influence over the Company; ot
(ii}} Is 2 member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

{(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company ate membets of the same Company (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate ot joint venture of a member of
a Company of which the other entity 1s a member}.

(iiiy Both entides are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv) One entity is a joint venture of 2 third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

{(v) The entity is a post-employment berefit plan for the benefit of employees of cither the Company or an entity
telated to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoting employers are also related to the
Company;

(vi) The emtity is controlied or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vit) A person identified in () () has significant influence over the entity or is 2 member of the key management
petsonnel of the entity (or of a parent of the endty).

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets, Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity instraments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds,

4. Critical accounting judgernents and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting polictes, which are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the cartying amounts of assets and Labilities that are not readily apparent
from other soutces. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historicat experience and other factors that are
consideted to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and undetlying assumptions ate reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the petried of the
revision and future petiods if the tevision affects both current and future periods. The sensitivities for life insurance
contracts are disclosed in note 28.

Significant areas where management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are 2s follows:
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4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncettainty {continued)
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

'The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTOCL is
an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future econotnic conditions and

credit behavior (c.g. the likelthood of customers defaulting and the resulting losscs).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accountng requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

. Determining the criterda for significant inctease in credit tisk;

. Determining the criteria and definition of defaulr;

. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL; and
. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Estimates of future cash flows to fulfill insurance contracts

Included in the measurement of each group of contracts within the scope of IFRS 17, ate all futute cash flows within
the boundary of each group of contracts. The estimates of these futute cash flows ate based on probability-weighted
expected future cash flows which includes the cxpected premium receipts and ultimate cost of claims.

The ultimate cost of claims is estimated by using 2 range of standard actuatial claims projection techniques, such as
Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumpton undetlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims developiment expetience can be used
to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods exttapolate the development of
paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (ncluding claims handling costs), and claim numbers based on the
observed development of catlier years and expected loss ratios. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by
being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in order 1o reflect their future
development.

I most cases, no explicit assumptons are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the
assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claits development data on which the projections are based.
Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in futute, {e.g,, to reflect
one-off cecurrences as well as internat factors such as portfolic mix, policy features and claims handling procedures) in
order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims. The Company also has the tight to pursue thitd parties for
payment of some or all costs. Estimates of salvage recoveties and subrogation reimbutsements are considered as an
allowance in the measurement of ultimate claims costs.

Assessment of significance of insurance risk

The Company applies its judgement in assessing whether a contract transfers to the issucr significant insurance risk, A
contract transfers significant insurance risk only if an insured event could cause the Company to pay additional amounts
that are significant in any single scenario and only if there is 2 scenario that has commercial substance in which the issuer
has a possibility of a loss on a present value basis upon an oceusrence of the insured event, regatdless of whether the
insuted event is extremely unlikely.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key scurces of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
Risk adjustment

‘The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requires for bearing the uncertainty about
the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The tisk adjustment reflects an amount that an
insuret would rationally pay to temove the uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount,

The Company has estimated the tisk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency) approach at the 75th
percentile. That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all product lines (as an indication of the
compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as being equivalent to the 75th percentile confidence level less
the mean of an estimated probability distribution of the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the probability
distribution of the future cash flows, and the addidonal amount above the expected present value of future cash flows
required to meet the target percentiles.

Onerous groups

The Company uses significant judgement to determine at what level of granulatity the Company has rcasonable and
suppottable information that is sufficient to conclude that all contracts within a set are sufficiently homogeneous and will
be allocated to the same group without performing an individual contract assessment.

Discounting

"The Company adjusts the cattying amount of the insurance contracts liabilities and reinsurance contracts assets to reflect
the time value of money and the effect of financial tisk using discount rates that reflect the charactesistics of the cash flows
of the group of contracts,

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows are listed below:
1 year 3 years 5 years 10 yeats
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Discount rate used 6.810% 4.541%  6.720% 4.744% 6.042% 4.540% 5.847% 4.288%

Under the bottom-up apptoach, the discount rate is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity
characteristics between the financial assets used to detive the risk-free vicld and the relevant liability cash flows (known as
an ‘fliquidity premium’). The risk-free curve itself will either be derived by the Company from risk free assets in the market,
ot the Company may choose to apply a published tisk-free yield curve. The top-down apptoach starts with the
determination of a reference portfolio. The reference portfolio yield will be taken as the yield on the underlying items to
which the liability cashflows are linked.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. Investment securides and unit linked assets

Investment securities comprises the following;

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (6.1}
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (6.2)

Unit linked assets (6.3)

6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit oz loss

Quoted equity securities in U AE.
Quoted equity securities outside U.AE.
Quoted bonds in ULAE.

Unquoted equity securities outside U.AE.
Unquoted equity secutities in U.A.E.

Fair value at the end of the year

Asar 3l Asar 31
December December
2023 2022
AED(00 AED’000
72,264 76,752

24 27

72,288 76,779
403,157 349,613
Asat 31 Asat 31
December December
2023 2022

AED 000 AEDY000
64,076 61,953

598 464

6,106 11,971

134 327

1,350 2,037
72,264 76,752

Investments classified at fair value through profit or loss are designated in this category upon initial recognition.

The bonds carty interests at the rates of 3.62% to 3.87% (31 December 2022: 2.09% to 5.87%) per annum. The
bonds are redeemable at par from 2024 t0 2026 (31 December 2022: 2023 to 2026} based on their maturity dates,
"Thete aze no signiicant concentrations of credit risk to a single counter party for debt Instruments and the carrying

amount reflected above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit sisk for such assets.

6.2 Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Quoted equity secugities in UALE.

As at 31 Asat 31
December December
2023 2022
AED000 AED000
24 27

24 27

Investments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income are designated in this category upon initial

tecognition.

Duting the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not dispose any equity investments held at fair value
through other comptehensive income (31 December 2022: nil} in line with the Company’s investment strategy.
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6. Investment securities and unit linked assets (continued)

6.3  Unit linked assets

Investments held on behaif of policyholders of unit linked

products carried at FYIPL

Financial assets due from reinsurer towatds policyholders

of unit-linked products carried at FVIPL

Cash held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products

carried at ameortised cost

6.4 Movement in the financial investments

At 1 Januaty 2022
Purchases

Disposals

Changes in fair value
Realised gain

As at 31 December 2022
Purchases

Disposals

Changes in fair value
Realised gain

As at 31 December 2023

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AED000 AED 000

235,692 215,180

153,589 122,490

13,876 11,943

403,157 349,613

EVTPL ¥FVIOCl Total
AED000 AED000 AED000
47871 17 47 888
67,165 - 67,165
(36,168) - (36,168)
(5,289) 10 (5,279
3173 - 3173
76,752 27 76,779
8,939 - 8,939
(14,681) - (14,681)
421 3) 418
833 - 833
72,264 24 72,288
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7. Statutory deposit

The statutory deposit of AED 10 million (31 Decemnber 2022; AED 10 million) is required to be placed by insurance
companies operating in the U.A E. with the designated nadonal banks. This deposit has been pledged to the bank as
security against a guarantee issued by the bank in favour of the CBUAE for the same amount.

Statutory deposits, which depend on the nature of insurance activities, cannot be withdrawn except with the prior
approval of the CBUAE in accordance with Article 42 of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (now, UAE Tederal Law No.
48 of 2023) and bear interest rate of 4.75% per annum (31 December 2022: 1.5% per annum).

8. Cash and bank balances

8.1 Cash and cash equivalenis

As at Asat

31 December 31 Decembet

2023 2022

AED*000 AED000

Cash on hand 35 50

Bank balances:

Current accounts with banks 38,250 30,789

Bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less - 174,828
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

statement of cash flows 38,285 205,667

In UAE. 38,285 203,593

Outside UAE - 2,074

38,285 205,667

Bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less as at 31 December 2023 carnied interest rate ranging of
Nil per annum (2022: between 4.05% to 5%).
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8. Cash and bank balances (continued}
8.2 Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months
As at Asat
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AED'000 AED000
Deposits with original matutities greater than three months 294,570 68,888
In UAE. 294,219 45,210
Qutside UAE. 351 23,678
294,570 68,888

Bank deposits cartied intetest rates tanging from 2.5% te 5.75% pet annum (31 December 2022: 1.5% to 8% per annmum).

Bank deposits of AED 45 million (31 December 2022: AED 45 miilion} have been pledged as security against the credit
facility which is to manage the liquidity position.

The Company has obtained overdrafts facilides from commercial banks in the UAR amounting to ABD 25 million (31
December 2022: AED 25 million) which catry interest rate of 1% per annum above the highest interest rate payable on
fixed deposits under lien for the overdraft facility; or as vatied by notice in writing received from the bank from time to
time. Urused credit facilities amounted to AED 25 million {31 December 2022: AED 25 milliosn).

9. Share capital
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AED6G0 AED000
Issued and fully paid 330,939,180 shares of AED 1 each
(31 December 2022: 330,939,180 share of AED 1 each) 330,939 330,939
10. Reserves
16.1  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 and the Company’s Attcle of Association, the Company has resolved
niot to increase the statutory reserve above an amount equal to 50% of its paid up share capital. The Company transfers
10% of the profits for each year to the smatutory reserve. The Company transferred AED nil during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: AED 1,833 thousand). The teserve is not available for distribution except in the citcumstances
stipulated by the law.

1).2  Special reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors may wansfer 10% of annual net profits,
if any, to a special reserve until an Ordinary General Meeting upon a proposal suspends it. The special teserve can be
udlised for the purposes determined by the Ordinary General Meeting upon recommendations of the Board of Directors.
The Company ttansferred AED nil during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: AED 1,833 thousand).

10,3  Fair value reserve

'The fair value reserve comptises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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10. Reserves (continued)

10.4 Reinsurance reserve

In" accordance with Atticle 34 of the UAE Central Board of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019, the Cotnpany has
transferred AED 2,119 thousand from “Accomulated losses” to the ‘Reinsurance reserve” being 0.5% of the total insurance
premium ceded to reinsurers during the year ended 31 December 2023 (year ended 31 December 2022: AED 2,521
thousand). The Company shall accumulate such provision year on year and shall not dispose of the feserve withour the
written approval of the assistant governor of the banking and insurance supervision department within the CBUAE.

11. Related party balances and transactions

The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims and enters into transactions with other
business enterprises that fall within the definition of a related party as defined by Intemational Accounting Standard 24.
Related parties include the Company’s majot Shateholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them and their families
over which they exetcise significant management influence as well as key management personnel. The Company’s
management believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly different from those that could have been
obtained from third parties.

At the end of the repotting year, amounts due from/(to) related parties which are included in the respective account
balances are detailed below:

As at Agat
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AED000 AEDY000
Balances with entities related to Board mermbers
Gross outsranding claims (included in insurance contract liabilitics) 468 468
Fixed deposits 45,408 45,256
Bank account 6,105 3,537
Balances with former major shareholder
Insurance premium receivable (included in insutance contract assets) 26,603 26,603
Provision for expected credit losses (26,360) {20,360)
Net 243 243
Investnent properdes reclassified w “Advance paid for purchase of real
estate propertics” 72,270 72,270
Revetsal of net fair value gains tecorded in ptior years (35,770) {35,770}
Advance paid for purchase of real estate propestics™ 36,500 36,500
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (36,500) {36,500}

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. No guarantees have been given to the
related parties.

* The amount undet the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment
Properties with a carrying value in the bocks of AED 72.3 million in the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. The said asset represents purchased assets from related parties duting the years 2013 and 2014 The
purchased assets comptise 2 60 residential unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feet with integrated
infrastructure. For one of the assets, the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 square feet of the land, which
was reduced to 56,800 squate feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction received from the
former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

11. Related party balances and transactions {continned)
Balances with former major sharcholder (continued)

‘The counterparties {related parties) to the above transactions never fulfilled their obligatons to the Company (the Buyer),
and as a result the Company did not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said assets. This has resulted in the
Incorrect recognition of fair value gains of ARID 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of which the Company
never obtained possession or legal title, and the misappropriation of advances amounting to ARD 36.5 million paid to 2
related party towards the acquisiton of the investment propetties. Accotdingly, the Boatd of Ditectors of the Company
decided to book a full provision (AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action against all involved
parties, to recovet the Company’s tights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30
September 2021,

Daring the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:
For the year ended 31 December

2023 2022
AED(00 AED000

Transactions with entities related to Board members
Insurance contracts issued (inchuided in insurance revenue) 349 1,201
Claims paid (included in insurance service expenses) {206) (1,829
FD interest income from Bank of Umm Al-Quwain 1,524 439
Bank charges 100 108
Rental paid 825 825
Allocation of reinsurance premium 298 373

Compensation of key management personnel
Shott-term benefits (included in insurance service expenscs) 2,300 2,400
Long-term benefits (included in insurance service expenses) 183 200
Board of Directors” fees 1,350 1,655
12.  Contingent liabilities

Asat 31 Asat 31
December December
2023 2022
AED00 ABD000
Letters of guarantee* 11,448 13,186

*Includes AED 10 million (31 December 2022: AED 10 million) issued in favor of the CBUAE (Note 7).

‘The Company, in common with the majority of insuters, is subject to litigation in the normal cousse of its business, Based
on independent legal advice, the Company considets that the outcome of the outstanding court cases will not have a
matetial impact on the Company’s financial staternents.

13. Unit linked liabilities

The Company issues unit linked policies which have both insurance risk and investment components, The investrnent
portion s invested on hehalf of the policyholders as disclosed in note 6.3 to these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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13.  Unit linked liabilities (continued)

Movement during the year:

Payables to policyholders’ of unit-linked products

Payables classified under insurance contract liabilities*®

As at 31 As at 31
December December
2023 2022
AED000 AED000
403,157 349,613
(32,873) {(18,818)
370,284 330,795

*Under IFRS 17, the liabilities for unit linked policies with significant insurance tisk are included within the ealeuladon of

the insurance contract liabilities amounting to AED 32,873 thousand (31 December 2022: 18,818 thousand).

14. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets

The breakdown of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that are in an asset
position and those in 2 liability position is set out in the table below:

Insurance contracts issued
Life
General

Total insurance contracts
issued

Reinsurance contracts held
Life
General

Total reinsurance contracts
held

31 December 2023 31 Decembet 2022 (Restated)
Assets Liabilities Net Assets  Liabilities Net
AED000 AED000 AED000 AEDGG0 AEDO00 AED000
{1,038) 197,490 196,452 4) 201,352 201,348
(30,049) 597,365 567,316 (37,478) 648,100 610,622
(31,087) 794,855 763,768 (37,482) 849 452 811,970
{132,125) 1,776  (130,349) (153,598) 479 (153,119
{411,141) 17,728  (393,413) {473,816) 24 315 {449,501
(543,266) 19,504  (523,762) (627.414) 24,794 {602,620}

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for insurance contracts issved, showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incutred claims, is disclosed in the next page.
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14. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or Hability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the Hability for incutred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA:

Liabilittes for remaining Liahkilities for incurred
coverage claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding loss Loss  value of future Risk
31 December 2023 component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED 000 AED000 AELDP0060 AED'0 AED00G
Insurance Contract Liabilities as at 1 January 59,965 2,068 623,349 26,007 711,389
Insurance Contract Assets as at 1 january 105,513 - {67,273) (758) 37,482
Net Insurance contract liabikities a5 at 1 January
2023 (45,547) 2,068 690,622 26,765 673,908
Insurance revenue (603,121) - - - {603,121y
Insurance service expenses
Incusred claims and other expenses - - 453,047 - 453,047
Amottisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows £7,859 - - - 57,859
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals - (569 - - {569)
Changes 1o tabilities for incurred claims . - (95,849) {4,452) {108,301}
Insurance secvice result (545,262) (569) 357,198 {4,452) {193,085)
Insurance finance expenses - - 24,939 43 24,896
Total changes in the statement of
comprehensive income (545,262) {562} 382,137 {4,495) {168,185)
Cash flows
Premiums received 633,947 - - - 633,947
Claims and other expenses paid - - {453,047) - (453,047)
Insurance acquisition cash flows {65,809) - - - {65,80%
Total cash flows 568,138 - (453,047 - 115,091
Insurance Contract liabiliries as ar 31 December 93,788 1,399 535,039 21,679 651,896
1nsurance Contract assets as at 31 December (116,461} 101 84,673 600 (31,087)
Net insurance contract liabilities as at 31
December 2023 (22,671} 1,499 619,712 22,210 620,810
3 December 2022 (rerfared)
Insurance Contract Liabilivies as at 1 January {11,519 3,843 742,611 29,315 764,250
Insurance Contract Assets as at 1 January 43,924 - {41,096) {535} 2,293
Insurance contract liabilides as at 1 January 2022 {55,444 3,843 783,708 29 851 761,958
Insurance revenue (724,459) - - - {724,459)
Insurance service expenses -
Incurred claims and other expenses - - 559,239 - 559,239
Amottisation of insurance acquisition cash
flows 81,683 - - - 81,683
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals - (1,774 - - (1,776
Changes to liabilitics for incutred claims - - (86,420) {2,640) (82,060
Insurance service result (642,776} (1,774) 472819 (2.640) {174,371}
Insurance finance expenses - - (6,666) {446) {7,112)
Total changes in the staternent of comprehensive
income (642,776} {1,774 466,153 {3,086 {181,483
Cash flowis
Preminms received 735,846 - - - 735,846
Chims and other expenses paid - - (559,239 - (559,239
Insurance acquisidon cash flows {83,175) - - - (83,175)
Total cash flows 652,671 - {559,239 - 93432
Insuraace contract liabilities as at 31 December 39,965 2,069 623,349 26,007 711,390
Insurance contract assets as at 31 December {105,514) - 67,273 758 {37,483}
Net insurance contract liabiliges as at 31 December
2022 {45,544 2,069 690,622 26,765 673,907




Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

14. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (contnued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incurred claims (continued)

Analysis by measurement component - Contracts not measured under the PAA:

CSM

Contracts

Estimates under

of present Risk modified

value of adjustment for retrospective

future cash  non-financial transition
31 December 2023 flows risk approach Totat
AED000 AED(00 AED00D AED 000
Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January 2023 64,772 18,033 55,256 138,061

Changes that relate to cutrent services
CSM recopnised fot services provided - - (1,452) (1,452)
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk

for risk expited - (1,652) - (1,652)
Expetience adjustrnents (12,057) - - (12,857)
Changes that relate to future services
Contracts initially recognised in the year {3,058) 1,718 2,486 1,146
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM 49,177 (3,106) (46,070) (1)
Changes in estimates that result in losses and
revetsals of losses on onerous contracts 5,025 (1,456) - 3,569
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims (1,527) - - (1,527)
Ingurance service result 37,560 {4,496) (45,036) (11,972)
Net finance expenses from Insurance CONtracts 2,751 592 2,004 5,347
Total changes in the statement of profit or Joss
and OCI 40,311 (3,204) (43,032} {6,625}
Cash flows
Premiums received 31,386 - - 31,386
Claimns and other directly attributable expenses paid (18,63%) - - (18,639)
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid (1,225) - - (1,225}
Total cash flows 11,522 - - 11,522
Net insurance contract liabilities as
at 31 December 2023 116,605 14,129 12,225 142,959
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4. Insurance and teinsurance contract assets {continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incurred claims (continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Contracts not measured under the PAA (continued):

CSM
Contracts
Estimates under
of present modified
vaiue of Risk retrospective
future cash adjustment for transition
31 December 2022 (restated) flows non-financial risk apptoach Total
AED000 AED000 AED0G) AED000
Insurance coatract liabilities as at 1 January 105,306 14,497 735 120,538
Changes that relate to curtent services -
CSM recognised for setvices provided - - (5,595) (5,595)
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial - (2,063} s - (2,063)
Bxperience adjustments (4,690) - - {4,690)
Changes that relate to futute services
Contracts initally recognised in the year (30,519} 9.454 28,331 7,266
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM {20,862 (3,501} 30,363 -
Changes in estimates that result in: losses and
reversals of losses on onerous cortracts {584) (510 - {1,094}
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to liabilides fot incurred claims 6,164 - - 6,164
Insurance service result (56,491) 3,380 53,099 {12}
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts {14,563 157 1,422 (12,9848
‘Total changes in the statement of profit or loss (71,054 3,537 54,521 {12,994)
Cash flows
Premiums received 50 946 - - 59,946
Claims and other dircetly atnibutalble
expenses paid (29,320) - - (29,326)
Insutance acquisition cash flows paid 09 - - 99
Total cash flows 30,521 - - 30,521
Net insurance contract liabilides as at 31
December 2022 64,773 18,034 55,256 138,063
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

14. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets {continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA:

Amounts recoverable on
incurred ¢laims

Estimates of

Assets for remaining coverage

the present
Excluding loss value of
recovery Loss futuce Risk
31 December 2023 component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED000 AED*000 AED{H0 AED 000 AED'000
Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 Jaouary 2023 7,605 1,099 499,083 22,957 530,744
Reinsurance contrace liabilities as at 1 January 2023 57,180 - (32,508) (358} 24,314
Net ceinsutance contract liabilities / (assets) as at
1 January 2023 (49,575) 1,099 531,501 23,315 506,430
An allocation of reinsurance premiums (297,102) (1,099) - - (298,201)
Arnounts recaverable from reinsurers for incurred
Amounts recoverable for ineutred claims and .
other expenses - - 210,281 - 210,283
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying contracts
and adjustments - 411 - - 411
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurted
claims - - (104,217) {4,482} {108,699
Net income or expense from reinsurance (297,102 (638) 106,064 (4,482 {196,208)
Reinsurance finance income - - 27,174 {34) 27,140
Total changes in the staternent of
comptehensive income {297,102) {688) 133,238 (4,516) (169,068}
Cash flows
Premiums paid 311,388 - - - 311,388
Amounis received - - (210,281) - {210,281)
Total cash flows 311,388 - (210,281) - 101,107
Retnsurance contract assets as at 31 December 2023 {18,524) (411) {419,438) (18,534) {456,907
Reinsurance contract liabitities as at 31
December 2023 53,813 - {35,110} (264) 18,439
Net reinsurance contract labilitics/{assets) as at
31 December 2023 35,289 (411) (454,548) (18,798) . (438,468)
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14. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)
Roll-forward of net asset or Liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage

and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued):

Amounes recoverable on
incutred claims
Estimates of

Assets for remaining coverage

the present
Excluding toss value of
recovery Loss future Risk
31 Decernber 2022 (Restated) ) component component cash flows adjustment Total
AEL000 AEDD00 ABDF000 AEDG00  AEDQOD
Retnsurzance contract assets as at T Janvary 2022 (57,158) 2,484 610,925 25,803 382,054
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1 January 2022 15,802 - (14,685) (696} 421
Net reinsurance contract liabilides / (assets) as at January
2022 (72,960) 2,484 625,610 26,499 581,633
An allocation of reinsurance premivms (361,523} (2,484) - - (304,00
Amounts recoverable from reinsuters for incorred claims
Amournes recoverable for incurred claims and other - - 278317 - 278,317
Lass-recovery on onerous underlying contracts and - 1,09% - - 1,099
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims - - (83,440 {2,584) {86,029
Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held {361,523 (1,385} 194,877 (2,584) (170,615}
Reinsurance finance income - - {10,579 (599 (11,178
Total changes in the statement of comprehensive income {361,523 {1,385) 184,298 {3,183) {181,793)
Cash flows
Premiums paid 384,909 - - - 384509
Awmounts recelved - - (278317 - (278,317)
Total cash flows 384,909 - {278,317y - 106,592
Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 2022 7,605 1,099 499,083 22957 530,744
Reinsurance contract liabilities as ar 31 December 2022 57,180 - (32,508) (358) 24,314
Net reinsurance contract liabilides / (assets) as
at 31 December 2022 {49,575 1,009 531,591 23,315 506,430
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

14. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roli-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts tecoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Contracts not measured under the PAA:

31 December 2023

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January 2023
Reinsutance contract labilities as at 1 Janoary 2023
Net reinsurance contract assets

Changes that relate to cutrent services
CSM recognised for services provided
Change in tisk adjustment for non-finaneial risk for
Expetience adjustments
Changes that relate to future services
Contracts initially recognised in the year
Changes in estimares that adjust the CSM
Changes in estimates rhat relate to losses and
reversals of losses on onerous underlying contracts
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to assets for incutred claims
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and
OCl
Cash flows
Premiums received
Claims and other directly atsributable expenses paid
Total cash flows
Reinsurance contract assets as at 30 December
Reinsurance contrace liabilities as at 30 December

Net teinsurance contract assets as
at 31 December 2023

CSM
Contracts
Estimates undex
of present Risk modified
value of adjustment for retrospective
future cash  nen-financial transition
flows rigk approach Total
AFEDG00 AED’000 AED00D AED 000
47,245 8,136 41,289 96,670
174 (420) 726 430
47,071 8,556 40,563 96,190
- - {436) {436)
- {928) - (928
(7,133) - - {7,133)
{2,708) 307 2,821 420
47,320 4,200 (43,121) )
1,685 140 - 1,825
{1,382) - - (1,382)
371,782 (4,681) (40,736) (7,635)
(6,447) 465 1,907 {4,075)
31,335 (4,216} (38,829) {11,710)
10,122 - - 10,122
{9,311) - - (9,311)
811 - - 811
(78,219) (3,695) (4,445) (86,359)
(1,000) (647) 2,712 1,065
(79,217) {4,340} {1,734) (85,291)
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14, Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roli-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims {(continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Conitacts not measured under the PAA {continued):

CSM
Contracts
Estimates under
of present Risk modified
valuc of adjustment for retrospective
future cash  non-financial transidon
31 December 2022 flows tisk approach Tatal
AED000 AED000 AEIF000 AED000
Net reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January 2022 78,033 8,218 (2,120 84,131
Changes that relate to current services
C3M recognised for services provided - - {4,001) 4,001y
Change in risk adjustment for non-financiat risk for - (850} - (899
Experience adjustments 3,028 - - 3,028
Changes that relate to funire services - - - -
Contracts initally recognised in the yeat (24,504 2,725 27,083 5,304
Changes in estdmates that adjust the CSM (17,122 {1,110 18,232 -
Changes in estimates that relate to losses and
reversals of losses on onerous underlying contracts 1,995 {301) - 1,494
Adjustments to assets for incurred claims 6,679 - - 6,679
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts {29,924 215 41,314 11,605
Net finance income from reinsutance contraces (4,132) 123 1,369 (2,640
Total changes in the statement of profit or
loss and OCI (34,056) 338 42,683 8,965
Cash flows
Premiums received 22,137 - - 22,137
Claims and other directly attriburable expenses paid (19,043 - - (15,043
Total cash flows 3,094 - - 3,004
Reinsurance contact assets as at 31 December 47,245 {8,136} (41,289 (96,670
Reinsurance contract liabilides as at 31 December 174 {420 726 480
Net teinsurance contract assets as
at 31 December 2022 {47,071} {8,556) 40,563 (96,190
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

14, Insurance and reinsurance contract assets {continued)

Expected recognition of the contractual service margin - An analysis of the expected recognition of the CSM remaining
at the end of the reporting period in profit ot loss is provided in the following table (number of years undl expected

to be recognised):
1year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 year >6 year Total
AEDG00 AED00 A¥XD000 AED000 AED'0OC AED’000 AED000
31 December 2023
Total CSM for insutance
contracts issued 941 885 790 718 669 8,222 12,225
Total CSM for
reinsurance contracts
held (67} (75 (70) (83) (105) (1,334) (1,734)
874 810 720 635 564 0,388 10,491
31 December 2022
{restated)
Total C8M {or insurance
contracts issued 5,742 5282 4,871 4,433 4,018 30910 55,2506
Total CSM for
reinsurance contracts
held {4,644 (4,271) {3,944 (3,589 (3,256) (20,85%) {40,563
1,098 1,011 927 844 762 10,051 14,693

Reconciliation of the measurement components of insutance and reinsurance conttact balances measuted undet both

PAA and Non-PAA as at:

31 December 2023

Insurance contract assets
Insurance contract Habilities
Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract liabilities

31 December 2022 (restated)
Insurance contract assets
Insuragce contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract assets

Reinsurance contract liabilites

PAA Non-PAA Total
AEDYQ00 AED*000 AEDY000
{31,087) - (31,087)
651,896 142,959 794,855
{456,908) (86,358) (543,266)
18,438 1,066 19,504
182,339 57,667 240,006
8,070 29,412 (37,482)
685,088 164,364 849,452
(527,229) (100,185) (627,414
17,688 7,106 24,794
167,477 41,873 209 350
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

16. Other receivables
30 December 31 December
2023 2022
AED000 AED000
Other receivables 37,702 40,687
Prepaid expenses 5,264 6,444
42,966 47,131
17, Intangible assets
Licensed
know-how
fee Software Total
AED000 AED000 AED000
Cost:

At 1 January 2022 19,108 21,158 40,266
Addidons - 86 86
Ttansfers from CWIP - 971 971
At 31 December 2022 19,108 22215 41,323
Addidons - 361 301
At 31 December 2023 19,108 22,576 41,684

Accumulaied Amortisation:
At 1 January 2022 11,464 14,228 25,692
Chatge for the year 3,822 3,086 6,908
At 31 December 2022 15,286 17,314 32,600
Charge for the year 3,822 2,121 5,943
At 31 December 2023 19,108 19,435 38,543

Carrying amournts;

At 31 December 2022 3,822 4,901 8,723
At 31 December 2023 - 3,141 3,141

‘The Company had paid non-refundable license fee in the year 2018 to utilise and access to know how of the
customers of a bank.

18, Other payables

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AED000 AED00

Other payables* 82,555 58,871
Provision for default claims 14,329 14,329
Non-unit reserve 6,312 5,314
103,196 78,514

* ‘This includes lease Habilities amounting to AED 3,817 thousand (2022: AED 6,855 thousand) and are disclosed
separately in note 24.2,
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Usnion Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

19. Insurance revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Contracts not measured under the PAA

Awmonntr relating fo changes in liabilities for rematning coverage

CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk expited
Expected incurred claims and other insutance service expenses
Recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows

Contracts measured under the PAA

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Contracts not measured under the PAA

Amonnts relating to changes in labilities for rematning coverage

CE8M recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk expired
Expected incurred claims and other insurance service expenses
Recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows

Contracts measuted under the PAA

Life General Total
AED000 AED'W000 AED00)
1,452 - 1,452
1,595 . 1,595
26,472 - 26,472
897 - 897
30,416 - 30,416
43,078 560,043 603,121
73,494 560,043 633,537
5,595 - 5,595
1,992 - 1,992
31,014 - 31,014
226 - 226
38,827 - 38,827
128,944 595,515 724,459
167,771 595,515 763,286
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Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

20, Insurance service expenses

For the year ended 31 Deceinber 2023

Incurted claims and other expenses

Amorttisation of insurance acquisition cash flows

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those losses
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

For the vear ended 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Incurred claims and other expenses

Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those losses
Changes to liabilides for incurred claims

Life General ‘Total
AED000 AED?000 AED000
86,227 382,080 468,307
5,713 53,043 58,756
4,519 (1,274) 3,245

. (28,215} {73,613) (101,828)
68,244 360,236 428,480
132,784 453,690 586,474
23,231 58,679 81,910
1,465 1,949 3,414
7,270 {90,165} (82,895)
164,750 424153 588,903
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Union Insurance Company P.}.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

21, Net insurance financial result

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Insurance finance income/ {expense) from
insurance contracts issued

Reinsurance finance {expense) / income from
reinsurance contracts held

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Restated)

Insurance finance income from insurance contracts issued

Reinsurance finance expense from reinsurance contracts held

22. Net investment income

Interest income

Other investment income/ (loss):

Dividend income

Realised gains on sale of investments at FVIPL
Untealised gain/(loss} on investments at FVTPL
Investment management expenses

Others

Other investment gain/(loss)

Net investment income

23. Other operating expenses

Boatd remuneration
Consultancy fee
Othets

23.1 The commmitment of short term leases

Life General Total
AED000 AED00  AED000
1,064 (21,959 (20,895)
(1,775) 24,839 23,064
3,518 6,345 9863
(3,167 {10,651 (13,818)
2023 2022
AED00 AED000
13,430 6,149
3,540 3,018

833 3,173

421 (5,289)

(980) {1,004)

31) (53)
3,783 (155)
17,213 5,994
2023 2022
AED'000 AEDD00
1,350 1,655

486 -

21,239 13,251
23,075 14,906

The commitment for shott term leases amounting to AED 1,029 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2023

(31 December 2022: AED 1,353 thousand)}.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

24. Leases
Q) Arounts recognised in the statement of financial position
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

241  Right-of-use assets

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AED’006 AED000

Balanice at the beginning of the year 6,861 637
Addition during the year - 9,240
Depreciation expense for the year (2,997} {3,016)
Balance at the end of the year 3,864 6,561

242  Lease liablities

Lease liabilites ate classified under other payables in note 18. Movement of lease Habilities during the year was

as follows:
Asg at Asat
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AED000 ATED000
At 1 January 6,855 32
Additions during the year - 9,240
Accrued interest 356 413
Payments during the year (3,394) (2,830)
At 31 December 3,817 6,855

The incremental borrowing rate used for calculation of lease liabilities is 6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2023

(31 December 2022: 6.7%%)

Current and non-cutrent poertions of lease liabilities are as follows:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AED’000 AED000

Non-current portion 728 3,821
Current portion 3,089 3,034
3,817 6,855
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

25, Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2623 2022
AED(08 AEIY'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 14,424 12,873
Charge for the year 2,031 2,885
Payments during the year (2,501) {1,334
Balance at the end of the year 13,954 14,424

26. Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings pet share

2023 2022
{Loss)/profit for the year (in 000) (2,479 2,506
Number of outstanding shates 330,939 330,939
Basic (loss) / earnings pet share (in AED) (0.007) 0.008

No figutes for diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company has not issued any insttuments which
would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised, as such diluted earnings per share is equivalent to
basic earnings per share.

27, Social contributions
‘The Company did not make any social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
28. Insurance risk

The sisk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event cccuts and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk Is random and thetefore
unpredictable, The Company writes general, medical and life insutance contracts, General insurance contracts of
the Company include Lisbility, Property, Motor, Fire, Marine, General accident and Engineering insurance
conttacts. Medical insutance contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contracts. Life insurance
contracts include group, Individual Life and credit life insurance contracts.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or
the timing thetreof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to
ensure that sufficient reserves ate available to cover these Habilities.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

28. Insurance risk (continued)
Risk managemernt framework

The Boatrd of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's tisk
management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoting the Company's risk management framework. The Committee repotts
tegularly to the Board of Directors on its activities related to Risk Management framework and further
developments. The primary purpose of Risk Management framework is to protect the shareholders from events
that deter the sustainable achievement of the set financial/petformance objective.

The Company's tisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor tisks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regulatly to reflect changes in matket condivions and the Company's activities. The Risk
Management principles are embedded in Company’s operatdonal and financial processes and further
mitigation/controls are implemented for effective Internal Risk Management framework in the functional processes.

The Cotpany’s Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company's risk management policies and procedutes and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company, The Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee is assisted
in 1ts oversight role by Internal Audit and Risk functions,

‘The Company does not foresee any material impact to its business and operations due to possible clitate change
effect in the near future. The Company will, however, be collating necessary data to monitor the possible effect on
a petiodic basis going forward,

Two key elements of the Company's insurance risk management framework are its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below,

Underwriting strategy

The Company's underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. This
teduces the variability of the portfolio’s outcome.

The underwtiting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industty sectors in which the Company is prepared to
underwtite. This strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting
authotitics that set out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, tetritory and
industry in order to ensure appropriate risk selection within the portfolio.

Business selection is patt of Company’s underwtiting procedutes/guidelines whereby premiums are charged based
on the assessment and type of the risks. Other factors such as risk inspections, mortality, persistency and cutrent
tnarket trends are also considered in the sk underwriting and premium calculation.

Reinsurance strategy

The Company’s reinsurance atrangements include proportional, non-proportional, excess of loss and catastrophe
covetage. The Company reinsutes a pottion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposure to
losses and protect capital resources.

The Company has a Reinsurance department that is responsible to arrange reinsurance arrangement as per the
annual business plans and also for setting the minimum-security criteda for acceptable reinsurance and monitoting
the putchase of teinsurance by the business units against those criteria. The department monitors developments
in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy. As a proactive measure and part of Risk Management
framework, the reinsurers securities rating is monitored for any downgtade from credit risk perspective. The
reinsurance regulatons issued by the CBUAE ate also incorporated in the Reinsurance strategy.

The Company entess into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsarance treaties to reduce the
net exposute to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative reinsurance in certain
specified citcumstances.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

28. Insurance rigk (continued)
28.1  Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages tisks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactiv
claims handling, The underwtiting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified i
terms of type and amount of tisk, industry and geography. Undeswriting limits are in place to enfotce appropriat
tisk selection critetia.

The Compatny has the right not to renew individual policies, to te-ptice the risk, to impose deductibles and to rejec
the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to putsue third parties for paymer
of some or all costs {for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company’s strategy limits the total exposure t
any one territory and the exposure to any one industry.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsuranc
atrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set minimum limit of AED 1,00
thousand (31 December 2022: 1,000 thousand) in any one event, The Company has survey units dealing with th
mitigation of risks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to improve risk claims. Th
tisks are frequently reviewed individually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying fact
current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and condidons, and other factots. The Company actively manages an
pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

28.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurtence basis. The Company is Hable for all insured evern
that occurred duting the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term, As
result, cettain claims are settled over a long petiod of time and element of the claims provision includes incurre
but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimarion of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty tha
the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the clait
event is available. IBNR claims may not be appatent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise t
the claims. For some insutance conttacts, the IBNR proportion of the total lability is high and will typically displ
preater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty «
estimating these labilides. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Compar.
considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of setding claims with simil
charactetistics in previous periods. Large claims atc assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in orde
to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio. T
esimating the liability for claims incurred but not reported, the Company involves an independent exters:
appointed actuary.

The cstimated cost of claims includes ditect expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expecte
subrogation value and other recoverics. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriat
information regarding its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it.
possible that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original Lability established. The amount ¢
insurance claims is in certain cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal preceder
on matters of contract and tort,

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provide
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the expetience being projected. The projections given by tk
various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimatio
technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the developmer

of each accident year,

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation technique
are a combination of loss-tatio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims expetience usin
predetermined formulae whete greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial los:
ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years’ expetieno
adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical claims inflation.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

28, Insurance risk (continued)
28.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of fisture claim payments (continued)

The loss ratios for the current and prior year, before and after retnsurance are summarised below by type of risk:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Net loss
Type of risk ratio ratio ratio ratio
General insutance 38% 63% 53%, 55%
Life insurance 26% 8% 37% 19%4

Based on the simulations performed, the impact on profit of a change of 1% in the loss ratio for both gross and net
of reinsurance recoveries would be as follows:

2023 2022
Gross Net Gross Net
AED*000 AED'000 AED000 AED000

Impact of an increase of 1% in loss ratio 7,268 3,029 8,299 3,174
Impact of a dectease of 1% in loss ratio (7,268) (3,029) (8,299 (3.174)

28.3  Process used to determine the assumptions

‘The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used as inputs for the assumptions
are internal, using detailed studies that ate cattied out quarterly. The assumptions are checked to ensute that they
are consistent with observable marker practices or other published information.

"The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due
regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and historical evidence of the size of
simifar claims.

Case cstimates are reviewed regulatly and ate updated as and when new information arises.

The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments or if catastrophic events occut. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate
costs of the loss is difficult to estmate.

The provision estimation difficultics also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance
contract, claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual sevetity of claims, determining the occurtence
date of 4 claim, and reporting lags.

‘The methed used by the Company for ealculating the provision of IBNR takes into account historical data, past
esdmates and details of the reinsutance programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveries. The
methods more commonly used are the chain-ladder (“CL”), expected loss ratios (“ELR") and the Botnhuetter-
Ferguson (“BF"} methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of histotical claims development factors and the selection
of estmated development factors based on this historical patrern. The selected development factors are then applied
to cumulative claims data for each accident yeat that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ultimate
claims cost for each accident year,
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Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C.

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

28, Insurance risk (continued)
28.3  Process used to determine the assumnptions (continued)

Chain-ladder techniques are most apptopriate for those accident years and classes of business that have reached a
telatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less suitable in cases in which the insurer does
not have a developed claims history for a particalar class of business.

The Botnhuetter-Fetguson method vses a combination of a benchmatk or market- based estimate and an estimate
based on claims expetience. The former is based on a measure of exposure such as premiums; the latter is based on
the paid or incurred claims to date. ‘The two estmates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the
experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
experience was not available for the projection (tecent accident years ot new classes of business),

The choice of selected results for each accident vear of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that bas been most appropriate to observed histotical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that a weighted average of different techniques have been selected for individual accident yeats or groups of accident
years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary and independent external actuaries
ate also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used historical data for the past 9
yeats.

The key assumptions used for the life insurance contracts are as follows:

Morzality

An approptiate base table of standard mottality is chosen depending on the type of contract. An investigation into
Cornpany’s experience over the most recent three years is performed, and statistical methods ate used to adjust the
rates reflected in the table to a best estimate of mortality for that year. Where data is sufficient to be statistically
credible, the statistics generated by the data are used without refetence to an industry table. For contracts insuring
survivorship, an allowance is made for futute mottality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in
the condnuouns mostality investgations performed by independent actuarial bodies.

Morbidity
The rate of recovery from disability is derived from industry experience studies, adjusted where appropriate for the
Company’s own expetience.

An analysis of sensitivity around vaticus scenatios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company’s
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability reported in the statement of financial position is
adequate.

However, it recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions which could
differ when clairns are finally settled.
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28, Insurance risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Contracts measured under PAA.

| Impactonnet | Impacton net Impact on Impact on
. rofit rofit equi equi
2023 Change: m grcfa’ss of ﬁet of groqss (?;' r:it (?;'
assumpntons . s . .
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
AED’006 AED000 AED000 AED000
Weighted
average term to
settlement +10% 2,130 642 2,130 642
Expected loss +10% 64,102 17,158 04,102 17,158
Inflation rate +1% 213 64 213 64
Weighted
average term to
settlement -10% (2,130) (642 (2,130) (642}
Expected loss -10% (64,102) (17,158) {64,102 (17,158)
Inflation rate -1% (213) (o4 (213) (64)
Impactonnet | Fmpact on net Impact on Impact on
; rofit rofit equi equi
2022 Change' m grgss of Eet of gro(lss :));' rE:t (‘;};
assumptions . . . .
reinsurance teinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
AED000 AED*000 AED000 AED000
Weighted
average term to
settlement +10% 2,962 19 2,962 19
Expected loss +10% 72,024 15,922 72,024 15,922
Inflation rate +1% 296 2 296 2
Weighted
average terin to
settlement -10% (2,962 (19) {2,962) (19
Expected loss -10% (72,024 (15,922 (72,024 (15,922)
Inflatfon rate -1% {296) (2) (296) (2)
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28. Insurance risk {continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Contracts not measured under PAA

Impact on net profit

Impact on net profit

2023 Change’ in gross of reinsurance net of reinsurance
assumptons AED'000 AED000

Mortality +15% (7,111) (55)
Lapse +40% (14,604) (2,725)
Risk adjustment +10% (457} (35)
Mortality ~15% 7,111 55
Lapse -40% 14,604 2,725
Risk adjustment -10% 457 35
. Impact on net profit Impact on net profit

2022 Change. " gross of reinsurance net of reinsurance
assumpmons AED’000 AED’000

Mottality +15% {4,645 {15,065)
Lapse +40% (7,699 {24,971)
Risk adjustment +10% (Z74) {887
Mortality -15% 15,065 4,645
Lapse -40% 24971 7.699
Risk adjustment -10% 887 274
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29, Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

. to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by U.A E. Federal Law No. 48 of 2023, on
Establishment of Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the UAE. (“CBUAE”) and
Organization of its Operadons.

. to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a polng concetn so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

. to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the
level of risk.

In U.A E., Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U AE. (“CBUAE”) specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The

minimum required capital {presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year,

"The table below summarises the minimum requited capital of the Company and the total capital held.

Asat As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AED000 AED000

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR}) 166,000 100,000

Solvency Capital Requitement (SCR) 105,439 142,766

Minirmum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 85,940 90,252

Own Funds:

Basic own funds 152,063 162,889
Ancillaty own funds

MCR Solvency Mazgin-Surplus 52,063 62,889

SCR Solvency Margin-Susplus 46,623 20,123

MGF Bolvency Margin-Sutplus 66,123 72,637

The Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.AE. (“CBUAE™) has issued resolution No. 42
for 2009 setdng the minimum subsctibed ot paid-up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance
fitms and AED 250 million for reinsurance firms. The resolution alse stipulates that at least 75 percent of the
capital of the insurance companies established in the UAE should be owned by UAE or GCC national
individuals or corporate bodies. The Company is in compliance with the minimum capital requitements.

Further, as per Article (8) of section (2} of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in U A E,, the
Company shall at 21l dmes comply with the requirements of solvency margin,
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30. Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating the fair vahue of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liabflity if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pticing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fait value measutements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements,

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (L.e., as prices) or
indirectly {i.e., derived from prices}. This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
than active; ot othet valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
matket data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
mstrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to eflect differences
between the instruments.

Valuatdon techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, compatison with similat
instrumments for which market observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
tisk-free and benchmatk interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and
equity prices, foteign cutrency exchange rates, equity index prices and expected price volatilities and corteladons.

The cbjective of valration techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be
received to sell the asset ot paid to transfer the liability in an orderly rransaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

301 Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

30. Fair value measurements {continued)
30.2  Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and FVTPL

FVIPL FVTOCI Total

AED(00 AED000 AED000

At 1 January 2022 3,819 - 3,819
Disposals (1,243 - (1,243
Changes in fair value (212 - (212
As at 31 December 2022 2,364 - 2,304
Changes in fair value (B8O} - (880}
As at 31 Decemnber 2023 1,484 - 1,484

There wete no transfers between the levels during the year.
31, Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilites, reinsurance
assets and insurance liabilities, In particular, the key financial sisk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds
ate not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts, The most important companents of
this financial tisk are credit risk, liquidity tisk, market fisk (which includes foreign currency risk, equity and debt
price risk and interest rate risk) and operational tisk.

311 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations tesulting in financial loss
to the Company,

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

insurance receivables;

other recetvables;

investment securities - debt;

bank deposits with original maturities of mote than three months;
statutory deposit; and

cash and cash cquivalents

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterpartics as a means of titigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposute and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit
exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are revicwed and approved by Management annually,

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primaty
insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. The creditworthiness of teinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial
strength prior to finalization of any contract.
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31 Financial Risk Management (continued)
311 Credit risk (continued)

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whomn it conducts
regular business, The exposute to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the right
of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information reported
to the Company includes derails of provisions for impaitment on insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs.
Exposutes ro individual policyholdets and groups of policyholdets are collected within the ongoing monitoting of
the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of
policyhelders, 2 financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried cut by the Company.

Insurance receivables consist of a latge number of customets, spread actoss diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluaton is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

The Company has no significant concentration of ctedit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar chatacteristics if they are
related entties. The credit sk on liquid funds is imited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The cartying aroount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

312  Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has builr an
apptopriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-
term funding and kquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves by contnuocusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below summatizes the maturity profile of the Company’s insurance and financial instruments. The
contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. ‘The maturity profile is monitored by management o ensute
adequate liquidity is maintained. The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting
date based on contractual repayment arrangements was as follows:
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31. Financial Risk Management {continued)

312  Liquidity risk {continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Assets

Statutory deposit

Tnyestment secriritios

Financial assets at fait value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsutance contract assets
Bank deposits with original
maturities of more than
three months

Other receivables
Iasurance contract assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilities

Insutance contract liabilides
Reinsurance contract
habilities

Unit linked labilities

Other payables

Lease liabilities

‘Total

Carrying Less than 1

Over 5 No maturity

amount year 1to5 years years date Total
AEDG00  AED000 AED'000 AEDW000 AED00) AED00
10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
72,264 2,559 2,846 - 60,859 72,264
24 - - - 24 24
403,157 - 106,789 302,308 - 403,157
543,266 456,907 21,590 64,769 - 543,266
294,570 294,570 - - - 294,570
42,966 17,186 25,780 - - 42,966
31,087 31,087 - - - 31,087
38,285 38,285 - - - 38,285
1,435,619 840,594 151,005 367,137 76,883 1,435,619
794,855 651,896 35,740 107,219 - 794,855
19,504 18,439 266 799 - 19,504
370,284 92,571 271,713 - 370,284
99,379 99,379 - - - 99,379
3.817 3,094 723 - - 3,817
1,287,839 772,808 129,300 385,731 - 1,287,839
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31 Financial Risk Management (continued)

31.2  Liquidity fsk (continued}

As at 31 December 2022 {testated)

Catrying Less than]

Over 5 No maturity

amount year 1to 5 years years date Total

AED00G . AED000 AEDCKH AED¥0 AEDP(0  AEDON
Assets
Statatory deposit 10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
Tnvestmient securitées -
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 76,752 5,830 5,443 - 65,479 76,752
Financial assets at fair value
through othet comprehensive
income 27 - - - 27 27
Unit linked assets 349,613 - 87,403 262,210 - 349,613
Reinsurance contract assets 627414 530,744 24,168 72,502 627414
Bank deposits with oxiginal
maturities of more than three
months 68,588 52,605 16,283 - - 68,888
Other receivables 47131 18,852 28279 - - 47131
Insurance contract assets 37,482 37,482 - - - 37,482
Cash and cash equivalents 205,667 205,067 - - - 205,667
Total 1,422,974 851,180 161,576 334,712 75,506 1422974
Liabilities
Insurance contract lisbilities 849,452 711,389 34,516 103,547 - 849,452
Reinsuranice contract
Itabilites 24,794 24,314 120 360 - 24,794
Unit linked Kabitities 330,795 82,699 248,096 - 330,795
Other payables 71,659 71,659 - - 71,659
Lease liabilities 6,855 3,034 3,821 - - 6,855
Total 1,283,555 810,396 121,156 352,003 - 1283555
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3. Financial Risk Management {continued)
313 Masket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a tesult
of changes in market ptices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its
issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company’s marker risks atise from open positions
in (a} foreign currencies (b) interest beating and (¢} price tisk assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed
to general and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the exposute to cutrency and intetest rate
risk that may be acceptable, which are monitoted on a regular basis. Howevet, the use of this approach does not
prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant matket movements. The unit linked contracts
have not been considered for sensitivity of market risk and as these are merely passed through contracts.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in one facter while holding all other factots
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occut, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated — for example,
credit spreads, changes in interest rate and changes in foteign cutrency rates.

Market risk drivers include cquity prices, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The Company
limits marker tisk by maintaining a diversified portfolic and by continuous monitoring of developments in local
equity and bond markets. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond
market movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

31.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Currency tisk 1s the risk that the value of a financial instroment will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates and atises from financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency. The Company's functional currency
is the UAE Ditham,

The Company has also exposures in USD, to which the AR is pegged and the Company’s exposure to currency
risk is limited to that extent.

31.3.2 Intetest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes 1n market interest rates.

The Company’s exposute to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2023, bank deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 8% per annum {31 December 2022: 0.15% to 8.5% per annum} and
therefore not exposed to cashflow interest rate risk,

31.3.3 Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in matket prices
{other than those arising from interest rate dsk ot currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instroment or its issuer, or factors affecting all sitnilar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Company’s ptice risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as
a result of changes in matket prices. The Company’s equity price tisk policy requires it to manage such risks by
setting and monitoting objectives and constraints on investtents, diversification plans, sector and market, The
fair values of financial assets are not different from their carrying values.

75



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3L Financial Risk Management (continued)

313  Market dsk (continued)

31.3.3 Price risk (continued)

Sensitivities

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Company’s profit or loss and other comprehensive

incomne by type of business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price risk factors atising from
the impact of the changes in these factors on the Company’s investments;

10% increase in price 10% decrease in price
FVIPL FVTOCI FVIPL FVTOCI
AED000 AED000  AED’GO0 AEDO00
2023
Quoted debt investments 611 - (6i1) -
Quoted equity investments 6,467 2 (6,467) (2)
Unquoted equity investments 148 - (148) -
2022
Quoted debt investments 1,197 - (1,197} -
Quoted equity investments 6,242 3 {6,242} {3
Unquoted equity investments 236 - (236) -

314  Operatonal risk

Operational risk 1s the tisk of loss arising from system failure, human error, frand or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead
to financial loss,

The Company cannot expect to eliminate a1t operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and
by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks.

The Company has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segregation of duties, access controls,
authotization and reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a focus on
compliance and internal audit framewotk. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the
industry ate monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.
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3. Financial Risk Management {continued)

31.5 Classification of financial assets and Habilities

(a) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and lability and their

catrying amounts as at 31 December 2023;

Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI cost Total

AED000 AED’Q0D AED000 AED000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 38,285 38,285
Bank deposits with original maturities of

more than three months - - 204,570 294,570

Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,600
Investment securities 72,264 24 - 72,288
Unit linked assets 389,281 - 13,876 403,157
Total 461,545 24 356,731 818,300
Financial liabilities:
Other payables - - 103,196 103,196
Unit linked labilities 370,284 - - 370,284
Total 370,284 - 103,196 473,480

(b} The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and lability and theit

carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022

Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI cost Total

AED000 AED000 AED000 AED000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 205,667 205,667
Bank deposits with original maturities of _
mote than three months - - 68,388 (8,888
Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investnent securitics 76,752 27 - 76,779
Unit linked assets 337,670 - 11,943 349,613
Total 414,422 27 296,498 710,947
Financial Habilities:
Other payables - - 78,514 78,514
Unit linked liabilities 330,795 - - 330,795
Total 330,795 - 78,514 409,309
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32. Gross written premiums

Deetails relating to gross written preminm are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of CBUAR and
are not calculated as per the requirernents of IFRS 17

31 December 2023

Direct written premiums

Assumed business
Foreign

Local

Total assumed business
Gross written premiums

31 December 2022

Ditect wtitten premiums

Assumed business
Foreign

Local

Total assumed business

Gross wtitten premiums

33. Corporate tax

All types of

Life Medical Property & Business
Insurance Insurance Liability Combined
AEDPP000 AED000 AED060 AED000
139,348 245,377 330,503 715,228

- - 1,793 1,793

- - 9,737 9,737

- - 11,530 11,530

139,348 245,377 342,033 726,758
All types of

Medical Property & Business

Life Insurance Insurance Liability Combined
AED00 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
270,516 223,460 338,409 832,385

. . 13,322 13,322

- - 22,610 22,610

B - 35932 35,032

270,516 223 460 374,341 868,317

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released the Federal Decree Law No. 47 of 2022 on the Taxadon
of Corporations and Businesses (the Law) to cnact a Federal Corporate Tax (CT) regitne in the UAE. The CT regime

will become effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023.

The Cabinet of Ministers Decision No. 116/2022 effective from 2023, specifies the threshold of income over which
the 9% tax rate would apply and accordingly, the Law is now considered to be substantively enacted. A rate of 9% will
apply to taxable income exceeding AED 375,000, a rate of 0% will apply to taxable income not exceeding AFIY 375,000

For the Company, current taxes shall be accounted for as appropriate in the financial statements for the petiod
beginning 1 January 2024, In accordance with TIAS 12 income Taxes, the Company has assessed the deferred tax
implications for the yeat ended 31 December 2023 and, after considering its interpretations of applicable tax law, official
pronouncements, cabinet decisicns and ministerial decisions (especially with regard to transition ules), it has been

concluded that it is not material.
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34. Approval of the financial statemenis

The financial statements were approved by the Boatd of Ditectors and anthotized for issue on 19 Magch 2024,
35. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation with current vear.

36. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly affect the
arnounts reposted in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Statement of actions taken to complete the corporate governance system during the year 2023, and how they were

implemented.

Statement of ownership and transactions of the board members, their spouses and children in the company's

securities during the year 2023.

Board of Directors:

a. Statement of the formation of the Board of Directors.

b. The proportion of the female element’s representation for the year 2023.

c. Reasons for non-nomination of any female member for Board Membership

d. Remunerations and attendance allowances:

1-  Total remunerations of the board members paid for the year 2022.

2- Total proposed remunerations of board members for the year 2023.

3- Dertails of allowances, salaries or additional fees received by a board member other than committee
attendance allowances and their reasons.

4-  Attendance allowances for meetings of committees emanating from the board received by the board members
for the financial year 2023.

e. Board meetings.

f.  Statement of the tasks and authorities of the Board of Directors delegated to the executive management.
g Details of transactions with related parties.
h. Organizational structure of the company.

i. Detailed statement of key executive officers.
External Auditor:
a. Overview of the external auditor.
b. Statement of fees and costs associated with the external auditor.
c. Reservations of the external auditor for the year 2023.
Audit and Risk Committee:
a. Declaration from the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee regarding his responsibility for the
committee's system in the company, reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
b. Names of Audit and Risk Committee members, their responsibilities and assigned tasks.

c.  Meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

a. Declaration from the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee regarding his
responsibility for the committee's system in the company, reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its
effectiveness.

b. Names of Nomination and Remuneration Committee members, their responsibilities and assigned tasks.

. Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Insiders Trading Follow-up and Supervision Committee:
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a. Declaration from the Chairman of the Committee regarding his responsibility for the committee’s system in

the company, reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
b. Names of committee members.

¢.  Summary of the committee's work report during the year 2023.

8. Risk Management Committee:
a. Declaration from the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee regarding his responsibility for the
committee's system in the company, reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
b. Names of Risk Management Committee members, their responsibilities and assigned tasks.
c. Meetings of the Risk Management Committee.
9. Investment Committee:
a. Declaration from the Chairman of the Committee regarding his responsibility for the committee’s system in the
company, reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
b. Names of Investment Committee members and their responsibilities.
c.  Meetings of the Investment Committee.
10. Internal Control System:
a. Declaration from the Board regarding its responsibility for the internal control system in the company, reviewing
its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
b. Name of the managing director, his qualifications and date of appointment.
c. Name of the compliance officer, his qualifications and date of appointment.
d. How the internal control management deals with any major problems in the company.
e. Number of reports issued by the internal control management to the Company’s Board.
11. Details of violations committed during the financial year 2023, statement of their reasons and how they were
addressed.
12. Statement of the Company’s Cash and In-kind Contributions during the year 2023 to local community
development and environmental conservation.
13. General.
Overview of the Company

Union Insurance, a national company licensed by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates and listed on the Abu

Dhabi Securities Exchange Market, was established in 1998 with a paid-up capital exceeding AED 331 million. The

company offers acomprehensive range of insurance products to individuals and corporates in the United Arab Emirates.

Led by a team of distinguished experts with extensive experience in the insurance sector, UIC provides innovative

insurance coverage and excellent value to its clients.

This includes both standard and customized insurance policies that help individuals, small, medium and large

enterprises, as well as government entities, in obtaining reliable and high-performance insurance coverage.

Additionally, the company offers insurance services such as risk assessment and gap analysis in insurance coverage

under the supervision of specialists with decades of experience.
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By providing better coverage in many areas, including but not limited to life insurance, health insurance, vehicle

insurance, property insurance, engineering insurance, liability insurance and marine insurance, Union Insurance
Company enables its clients to focus on their core operations while ensuring they possess effective and valid insurance

policies to manage their diverse risks.

With a keen understanding of risk environments and the constantly evolving insurance market, the company employs
a team of professionals holding an Associateship of Chartered Insurance Institute - London (ACII). This team provides
expertise, knowledge and strong capabilities in structuring insurance coverage to develop new and enhanced insurance

products. Being part of the company's workforce, UIC can consistently provide its clients with accurate quotations.

Furthermore, UIC benefits from strong support from leading global and local reinsurance companies, including Swiss

Reinsurance Company, SCOR, Hannover Re, Lloyd's, Generali and QBE Europe.

Distinguished by its focus on individuals, UIC fosters an institutional culture that emphasizes teamwork and a

cooperative environment that values the contribution its employees, of over 260 specialists.

This environment provides the best personalized service and puts the client at the forefront. This s a top priority for the
company because, in general, when a client files a claim, they have suffered a financial loss or other unfortunate event.
Therefore, providing truly personalized service is highly welcomed. In addition to this customer focus, UIC has

developed its claims processing and business operations to be as fast and straightforward as possible.

1. Statement on the Procedures Taken to Complete the Corporate Governance System During the Year
2023 and How They Were Implemented:

Based on the concept of governance, the company places great emphasis on applying the highest governance standards
by adhering to and complying with the laws, regulations and decisions in force in the United Arab Emirates. The
Corporate Governance Guide for Public Joint Stock Companies issued under the decision of the Chairman of the
Securities and Commodities Authority No. (3 R.M) for the year 2020 defines governance as "a set of controls and rules
that achieve institutional discipline in relationships and management within the company in accordance with
international standards and methods by defining the responsibilities and duties of the board members and senior
executive management of the company, taking into consideration protecting the rights of shareholders and

stakeholders."

The board of directors aimed at adopting a corporate governance framework and updating it whenever necessary to
ensure following the best rules and practices, contributing to the company's growth and achievement of its objectives.

The most prominent of these standards are:

- Compliance with transparency and disclosure in accordance with the laws and instructions issued by the
Securities and Commodities Authority, encompassing all reports that require disclosure, including interim and
annual financial reports, board meeting schedules, board resolutions and all data and statistics required by the

authority or the market.
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~  The board effectively manages the company by setting strategic objectives and overseeing their
implementation in collaboration with the senior executive management. It also supervises the committees
emanating from itin accordance with governance regulations.

—  The board forms permanent committees according to the regulations governing committee formation
procedures, which specify their tasks, term of office and authorities granted to such committees, it peri odically
monitors the committees' work and holds responsibility for their actions.

- Regular review by the board in coordination with the Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the company's internal control and risk management system to ensure their effectiveness and verify the
company'sand its employees' compliance with applicable laws, regulations and decisions issued by competent
authorities.

- Updating written rules regarding insider trading and obtaining approval from the board of directors,
establishing a register containing necessary information about insiders, forming a committee to follow-up,
manage and supervise insider trading and submit periodic reports on these transactions to the Securities and
Commodities Authority and the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange.

~  The company is committed to appointing a specialist responsible for all investor related tasks, with Ms. Riham
Osama being responsible for investor relations. Additionally, an electronic link has been established on the
company's website containing all necessary data, including financial reports and disclosures made to
regulatory and supervisory authorities.

- Companies are required to submit an annual governance report and publish it on the Securities and
Commodities Authority's website. Union Insurance Company has ensured the submission of the annual
governance report, making it available to shareholders, including all key financial and non-financial data and
actions taken each year.

~  Appointing an external auditor and determining their fees by decision of the general assembly in accordance

with laws and regulations.

2. Ownership and Transactions of the Board Members, Their Spouses and Children in the Company's

Securities During the Year 2023:

The company adheres to the provisions of Securities and Commodities Authority Board Resolution No. (2) of 2001
concerning the Regulations on Trading, Clearing, Settlement, Transfer of Ownership and Custody of Securities, which
stipulates in Article 14 the following;

"It is prohibited for the chairman and members of the board of directors of a listed company, its general manager or any
of the employees familiar with the company's material information to engage, personally or on behalf of others, in
transactions involving the company's securities or its parent, subsidiary, affiliate or ally companies, if any of these
companies have their securities listed in the market, during the following periods:

«  Withinten (10) business days prior to the announcement of any information that may affect the share price upward

or downward, unless the information results from sudden and unexpected events.
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«  Within fifteen (15) days priorto the end of the quarterly, semi-an nual, or annual financial period until the disclosure
of the financial statements.”

The company shall also comply with Securities and Commodities Authority Board Resolution No. (3) of 2000

concerning the Regulations as to Disclosure and Transparency, in addition to the resolutions and instructions issued by

the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange. The shares owned by the board members and their first-degree relatives were as

follows:

Shares owned as on
Name Position/Relationship Total Sale Total Purchase

31/12/2023

Al Salem Company Ltd Member 66,710,022 | .
A first-degree relative of
the Director of M/s. Al

Salem Abdullah Al Hosni Salem Company Ltd 76,614,519 - -
(corporate managing
director)
Sheikh Nasser bin Rashid Al- ~ Chairman of Board of LR i
. ; ; 76,614,519 : . :
Mualla (Family Transfer) Directors i . ;

3. Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors consists of seven members and their membership extends for three years. Members whose
office term has expired may be re-elected more than once. They shall be elected by the General Assembly through
cumulative secret balloting in accordance with the Articles of Association of Union Insurance Company. The Board is
entitled to exercise all powers necessary to achieve the company's purposes and objectives, except for those reserved
by law or the Articles of Association for the General Assembly. The Board shall carry out all its duties to ensure proper
guidance and direction for the company and its management, positively impacting the company's overall performance

and shareholders' rights.

A. Statement of the Formation of the Current Board of Directors:

The company is managed by a Board of Directors consisting of seven members. The following is a statement of the
formation of the current Board of Directors and the duration they have served as members of the Board of Directors

since the date of first election:

Membershipin Supervisory,

Duration of
Name Category Experience and Qualifications Other Joine Stock Government

Membership
Companies al or




Sheikh Nasser bin

Aziz Al-Mualla
Chairman of

Board of Directors

Dr. Ali Rashid
' Sultan Al Kaitoob
Al Nuaimi
Vice Chairman of
the Board of

Directors

Rashid bin Abdul |

Independent

| Independent

since the Date

of First Election

2021

2021

- Bachelor’s degree from Tulane

University, London - Businessman

- He served as Vice Chairman of the |

Board of Directors and Chairman of
the Executive Committee at Bank of
Umm Al Quwain since 1982.

- Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Umm Al Quwain

Cement Company from 1981 uniil

| 2017.

- Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Shar]ah Insurance

from 2000 until April 2021.

| -Recipient of the Best CEO Award

for Emiratisation in the banking

sector in the United Arab Emirates,

- Doctorat:i; Interna(i;mal Law -
|ohnson and Wales University -
USA.

- Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
- United Kingdom.

- Bachelor of Applied Arts in
Business Administration and
Marketing at the American College
in London, England.

- Bachelor’s degree in Economics
and Law from Gezira University.

- Diploma in Business

Administration

(EH/3676/MIC) London Institute of |

Commerce.

- Senior Manager at the National
Bank of Dubai during the period
from 2001-2007.

- Director of the Islamic National
Bank during the period from 2005
to 2007

| - CEO of Emirates NBD Real Estate

Company during the period from
2007 to 2017.

Vice Chairman of the |

Board of Directors of
the National Bank of
Umm Al Quwain,
Chairman of the
Executive Committee
and the Credit
Committee and a
member of the
Nominations and
Remuneration

Committee

| Director, Chairman of

the Risk Committee,
Member of the Audit
Committee, Member
of the Real Estate
Valuation Review
Committee and
Member of the
Nominations and
Remuneration
Committee from
March 15, 2020 to
date at the National
Bank of Umm Al

Quwain.

Commercial

Positions

None

None




Mr. Abdullah

Mohammed

Hassan Al Hosani |

Mr. Ahmed Saeed
Al Alami

Ms, Eman Al
Midfa

Dr. Bassel

Hindawi

Al Salem
Company Ltd,

represented by

Mr. Mochammed |

Independent |

Independent |

Independent

Independent |

Non-

Executive

2021

2021

2022

2023

2010

| - Bachelor’s degree in Accounting

and Economics, UAE University.

| - He has experience in the field of

: banking spanning more than 30

| years.

- Master of Business
Administration (MBA)

- ESADE Business School

- Bachelor's degree in Mechanical
Engineering

- Engineer at Hilal Petroleum from
March 2008 - August 2009 and
from December 2005 - December

2006.

| - Project engineer at Petrofac

International Limited from January

2007 - February 2008.

| -Bachelor’s degree in Business

Administration from the American

University of Sharjah

- She held several positions at
Emirates Airlines, the most recent
of which was Senior Director of
Revenue Improvement.

-PhD in Information Management
and International Business from

George Washington University.

-Over 25 years of leadership
experience, encompassing roles
such as Chief Executive Officer,
Chairperson, and Board Member
within both -private and public
seclors, reguialmy authorities, and

international organizations.

- Master of Science in Financial

Management - April 2011

- Bachelor of Electronic Commerce

% Higher Colleges of Technology,

June 2005
8

- Director at Ajman
Bank

- Director at Gulf |
Cement Company '
- Vice Chairman of

the Board of Directors |

of Amanat Holding |

| Company

- Partnerin Al-
Manara Investment ‘
and Industrial
| Development
Company
- Director of Emirates ‘
| Metallic Industries :
| Company
- Director at Pinnacle
| Restaurant & Catering

i Management

| None

None

- Managing Director
| of Umm Al Quwain
| General Investments |

Company since 2017 |

None

None

None

None

None



g

I Salem Abdullah Al | ; - Director of Gulf
| Hosni ' : | Medical Projects
| | |
: I . Company since 2005 |

B. The Proportion of the Female Element’s Representation for the year 2023:

The representation percentage of women on the company's Board of Directors for the year 2023 was (14%).

C. Reasons for Non-nomination of Any Female Member for Board Membership:

Not applicable.

D. Remuneration and Attendance Allowances:

The company's Articles of Association outline the method for determining the remuneration of the Board of Directors’
members, based on the provisions of Article (171) of Commercial Companies Law No. (32) for the year 2021. The
remuneration of the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors shall consist of a percentage of the net profit,
provided that this remuneration does not exceed (10%) of the net profit for the financial year after deducting

depreciation and reserves.

1- Details of Attendance Allowances for Meetings of Committees Derived from the Board that were

received by the current Board of Directors for the financial year 2023:

Allowances for Attending Sessions of Committees Emanating from the Current Board

Allowance Number of Allowances Total

Committee's Name
Member Value Meetings Value

Chairman of the Audit
Dr. Ali Rashid Al Kaitoab 10,000 [ 7 70,000
Committee
Member of the Risk
Dr. Ali Rashid Al Kaitoob 5,000 2 ' 10,000
Management Committee

-.-Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Al thairman oft.he

10,000 7 70,000
Hosni . Nominations Committee
Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Al Member of the Audit
5,000 4 20,000
Hosni Committee |
Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Al Member of the Risk |
5,000 2 | 10,000
Hosni | Management Committee |
Member of the '
Mr. Mohammed Salem Al Hosni 5,000 | 4 20,000
Nominations Committee |
Member of the
| Mr. Ahmed Al Alami 5,000 7 35,000
Nominations Committee
Member of the Risk

Mr. Ahmed Al Alami 5,000 2 | 10,000
Management Committee | |

9
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. CHairrnan of the Risk ) - ‘ i
Dr. Bassel Hindawi 10,000 2 | 20,000
Management Committee I
i Member of the Audit | ,
Ms. Eman Al Midfa | | 5,000 6 | 30,000 .
' l

| Committee

2- Details of Allowances, Salaries or Additional Fees received by a Board Member other than Committee

Attendance Allowances and Reasons:

Mr. Ramez Abu Zeid was appointed as an executive Director on 11-10-2022, where he was compensated for
additional duties assigned to him until his resignation from the Board of Directors on 02-05-2023, with an
amount totaling AED 337,096. Afterward, he was appointed as a consultant to the Board of Directors until 30-11-

2023 for a fee of AED 560,000, and from 01-12-2023, he was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer.

E. Board of Directors Meetings during the Financial Year 2023:

The Board of Directors held (6) meetings during the year 2023, as detailed below:

Current Board of Directors Meetings:

Kindly note that Mr. Ramez Abu Zeid resigned from his position as a board member on 02-05-2023, leaving the
seat vacant until the approval of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates was obtained for appointing Dr.

Bassel Hindawi as a board member, on 26-09-2023.

; Number of
20 14 27 26 30 12 Number of
Times of
Member March | August  September October ~ November — December Times of
| ; Attendance

2023 ‘ 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 Attendance

by Proxy
Sheikh Nasser bin Rashid |
Al-Mualla
Dr. Ali Rashid Al Kaitoob

N Abdulah A s |

v

.\(

A

Ms. Eman Al Midfa \j
.\’

\]

\!

; Mr Mohammed Salem Al

Hosni

PR - PFY PR
(=3]

Mr. Ahmed Al Alami

(]
(]
1
]
i
- |

Dr. I.B;ass.el Hindawi

\’Attendance X Absence

F. Board of Directors Resolutions issued by circulation during the fiscal year 2023:

Three circular resolutions have been approved during the year 2023.
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Resolution Date Resolution No.

Circular resolution dated 15-06-2023 regarding the approval of the company's financial
Decision No. (1)
statements for the three-month period ending 31-03-2023.

Circular resolution dated 06-09-2023 regarding the approval of the resignation of Mr. Abdul

Decision No. (2)
Muttaleb Al Jaedi - CEO.

Circular resolution dated 14-11-2023 regarding the approval of the company's financial
Decision No. (3)

statements for the nine-month period ending 30-09-2023.

G. Duties and powers of the Board of Directors that have been delegated to the executive management:

Mr. Abdul Muttaleb Al Jaedi has been delegated as CEO of the company until the date of his resignation
01-09-2023.

. Duration of
Name of Authorized Person Authorization Validit
Y S
Authorization

Mr. Abdul Muttaleb Mustafa Al
Jaedi

A Private Legal Agency with Limited Authority Unspecified

Taking into consideration the provisions of Companies Law No. 32 of 2021, the CEO, based on a special
authorization from the current board, he shall exercise the necessary powers to manage the company’s affairs,
including:

1-  Representing the company before natural and legal persons, ministries, authorities, committees, councils,
auditors, government and city departments, chambers of commerce and industry, Ministry of Economy,
Ministry of Human Resources and Emiratization, economic development departments, mu nicipalities, General
Directorate of Residency and Foreigners Affairs, interior and border authorities, ports, customs, traffic
departments, federal and local public prosecutors, notaries public, insurance companies and communication
authorities.

2- Signing all contracts, transactions, correspondences and documents related to the company's business,
submitting and following-up any necessary requests to any competent authority, whether federal, municipal
or governmental, within or outside the UAE.

3- Managing the company's legal proceedings by issuing instructions to the company's lawyers regarding
summons, written pleadings, court proceedings in the UAE and other countries of various types and degrees,
execution departments, investigation departments, notaries public, judicial committees for resolving rental
disputes in any emirate in the UAE and taking necessary actions and procedures to file and pursue lawsuits,
whether brought by or against the company, including precautionary measures, notifications, presenting
evidence, submitting memoranda, requests, protests, excuses, counterclaims, allegations of forgery,
appointment of experts, request for cancellation of seizure, acting as a third party, involving other co-
defendants, acknowledgment, abandonment, leaving, disposal and receipt exclusively in the name of the

company, appealing judgments and decisions through all prescribed methods, acknowledging the claimed
11
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right or waiving the same, reconciliation, accepting, directing or rejecting oaths, abandoning litigation, waiving
the judgment entirely or partially, through appeal, lifting seizure, abandoning the securities while the debt
remains, alleging forgery, rejecting the judge's or arbitrator’s decision, refusing or accepting offers.
He has the right to receive all documents and notifications related to the company from any governmental or
non-governmental entity, judicial or non-judicial and to make notifications to third parties.
He has the right to file reports on behalf of the company with the police, public prosecution and judiciary and
to waive them after fulfilling the related rights, whether inside the UAE or other countries and the agent has
the right to delegate and authorize whoever he chooses from the company's employees.

4- Selling, purchasing and renewing cars and vehicles owned by the company before the competent authorities

in the UAE and abroad and authorizing employees of the company in this regard.

H. Details of transactions with related parties during the fiscal year 2023;

The details of transactions with related parties include joint-stock companies in which UIC operates within the

scope of insurance operations, including general insurance, vehicle insurance and otherinsurance types, as follows:

Transactions with Related Parties Amount in AED

Accounts Payable - Old Board of Directors 26,598,372 Fully allocated and legally processed
Accounts Payable - New Board of Directors 362,149

Accounts Receivable - New Board of Directors -163,833

Shares Owned 0

Total Under Settlement Claims 467,922

Investment Real Estate 72,270,000 Fully allocated and legally processed

Transactions

Transactions

Subscribed Installments 349,277

Paid Claims 205,965

Fixed Deposits and Current Account Balance 45,408,083 Plus 6,104,807
Accrued Interest Revenues on Bank Deposits 1,523,711

Bank Charges 99,899

Rentals 825,099

I.  Organizational Structure:

12
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B. Dertailed Statement of Senior Executive Officers for the Year 2023

Total Salaries and Total Toral
Date of
Position Allowances Paid in Remuneration Remuneration Paid
Appointment
2023 (AED) Paid in 2022 (AED) in 2023 (AED
Chief Executive Officer (resigned
01/09/2012 2,200,000

on November 30, 2023)
Acting Chief Executive Officer 01/12/2023 100,000 -
President - General Insurance 16/10/2011 1,020,000 500,000
President - Life Insurance 16/09/2013

328,667 -
(resigned on April 26, 2023)
Chief Financial Officer 01/08/2019 747,000 -
Head of Health Insurance 01/08/2012

715,755 -
Department
Head of IT 01/04/2013 485,964 -
Head of Human Resources 01/05/2019

540,000 =
Department
Legal Affairs Manager 01/05/2013 749,250 -
Internal Audit and Compliance 10/11/2013

443,625 -
Manager
Risk Management Manager 27/11/2023 39,667

4, External Auditor:

A. Overview of the External Auditor:

Grant Thornton was appointed as the external auditor for Union Insurance Company by a decision issued by the
Annual General Assembly on 19/04/2023. Grant Thornton has been operating in the United Arab Emirates for over
55 years, with three offices in the country and employing 450 staff. Additionally, it has a widespread global presence
with approximately 750 international offices and around 62,000 employees, offering services to various economic
sectors. It's worth noting that this is Grant Thornton's first appointment to audit the operations of Union Insurance

Company.

Statement of Fees and Costs for the External Auditor:

The Annual General Assembly held on 19/04/2023, decided to appoint Grant Thornton as the external auditor for the
company for the year 2023. Their fees were determined at AED 600,000, which included all professional services

related to reviewing the interim and annual financial reports.

Partner Auditor Mr. Mohammed Ali

14



Number of Years Spent as External 2

Auditor for the Company

Total Audit Fees for the Financial
600,000/- Dirhams

Statements for the Year 2023

Fees and Costs of Other Special
Services Besides the Financial

Statements Audit for the Year 2023

Details and Nature of Provided Authentication of electronic forms for the Insurance Authority quarterly
Services and annual reports, authentication of supervision fees for the Authority,
authentication of Abu Dhabi Health Authority forms, auditing and
authentication of quarterly investment reports, anti-money laundering
reports as per Insurance Authority requirements regarding the
preparation of annual final reports. Additionally, auditing insurance

contracts according to IFRS 17 standards in addition to ICOFR.

Other Services Performed by Another Issuance of ICV Certificate for a fee of AED 9,000/- Dirhams

External Auditor During 2023

B. ReservationsIncluded by the External Auditor in the Interim and Annual Financial Statements for the

Year 2023:

There are no reservations included by the external auditor.

5. Audit Committee:

A. Committee Chairman's Acknowledgment:

Dr. Ali Rashid Al Kaitoob, Chairman of the Audit Committee, acknowledges his responsibility for the
committee's system within the company and for reviewing its operation mechanism to ensure its

effectiveness.

B. Audit Committee Members, Their Duties, and Assigned Tasks:

Audit Committee Members as on 30-11-2023:

Dr. Ali Al Kaitoob Chairman of the Committee

Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni Member

15



o¥

QR4

Ms. Eman Al Midfa Member

Mr. Ahmed Mansour External Member Outside the Board of Directors

- Members of the Audit Committee after the restructuring by the Board of Directors after 30-11-2023:

Dr. Ali Al Kaitoob Chairman of the Committee
Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni Member
Dr. Bassel Hindawi Member
Ms. Eman Al Midfa Member
Mr. Ahmed Mansour External Member Outside the Board of Directors

Audit Committee's Powers and Duties:

1. Reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and procedures.

2. Monitoring the integrity of the Company's financial statements, reports (annual, semi-annual and quarterly) and their
control systems, and reviewing the same as part of its regular work during the year, with a particular focus on the

following:

A-Any changes in the accounting policies and practices.

B - Highlighting the aspects subject to management’s discretion.

C - Substantial amendments resulting from the audit.

D - Assuming continuity of the Company's business.

E - Adhering to accounting standards determined by the Securities and Commodities Authority.

F - Adhering to listing and disclosure rules and other legal requirements related to financial reporting,

3. Coordinating with the Company's Board of Directors, Executive Management and the Financial Director oreq uivalent
manager in the Company in order to perform its duties. The Committee shall meet with the Company's auditors at least

once a year.

4. Reviewing any important and unusual items included or to be included in such reports, accounts and items outside
the balance sheet and paying due attention to any matters raised by the Company’s Financial Director, equivalent

manager, the Compliance Officer or the Auditor.

5. Making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the auditor’s selection, resignation or dismissal. In case

of the Board of Directors’ non-approval on the Audit Committee's recommendations in this regard, the Board of
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Directors shall include in the governance report a statement explaining the Audit Committee’s recommendations and

the reasons that led the Board of Directors to reject such recommendations.

6. Developing and implementing a policy for contracting with the auditor, and submitting a report to the Board of
Directors specifying the matters deemed important for action, along with making recommendations on the steps to be

taken.

7. Ensuring the auditor's compliance with the requirements set forth in the applicable laws, regulations, decisions and

the Company's articles of association, following up and monitoring his independence.

8. Meeting with the Company's auditor without the attendance of any chief executive officers or their representative
and discussing with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and the extent of its effectiveness in accordance with

the Accepted Auditing Standards.

9. Approving any additional work performed by the external auditor for the benefit of the Company and the fees

charged for such work.

10. Discussing all maters related to the auditor’s work, work plan, correspondence with the Company, comments,
proposals, reservations and any substantial inquiries raised by the auditor to Senior Executive Management regarding
accounting records, financial accounts or control systems, monitoring the Company's Management's response thereto

and providing the auditor with the necessary facilities to perform his work.

11. Ensuring the Board of Directors and Executive Management's reply in the required time to the clarifications and
g g ply q

substantial matters raised in the auditor’s letter.
12. Reviewing and evaluating the Company's internal audit systems and risk management.

13. Discussing the internal audit system with the Board of Directors, and ensuring the performance of its duty in

establishing an effective internal control system.

14, Reviewing the major investigations results of internal audit assigned by the Board of Directors or initiated by the

Committee and with the Board of Directors' approval.

15. Reviewing the auditor’s evaluation of the internal audit procedures and ensuring the coordination between the

internal auditor and the external auditor.

16. Ensuring the availability of the necessary resources for the internal audit function, reviewing and monitoring the

effectiveness of such management.

17. Examining internal audit reports and monitoring the implementation of corrective action for the notes contained

therein.

18. Establishing cantrols and systems that enable the Company's employees and stakeholders to report any potential

violations in financial reports, internal auditing or other matters confidentially and taking the steps to conduct
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independent and fair investigations of such violations, while establishing procedures to protect the reporting person

and accurately monitoring their implementation.
19. Monitoring the Company’s compliance with the Rules of Professional Conduct.

20. Reviewing the related parties' transactions with the Company and ensuring that there are no conflicts of interest

and making recommendation thereon to the Board of Directors prior to their conclusion.

21, Ensuring the application of work rules of its duties and powers assigned by the Board of Directors.

22. Reporting and making recommendations to the Board of Directors on the aforesaid matters contained in this Article.
23. Considering any other subjects determined by the Board of Directors.

C-Number of meetings held by the Audit Committee during the year, their dates and a statement of the number

of personal attendances of the members.

The Audit Committee held 7 meetings during 2023. Below is a statement of the meetings and the number of personal

Audit and Risk Committee Meetings

Meeting dated January 31, 2023

attendances:

Meeting dated March 17, 2023

Meeting dated June 13, 2023

Meeting dated June 19, 2023
Meeting dated August 31, 2023

Meeting dated September 07,2023

Meeting dated November 12,2023

Number of personal attendances of the Audit Committee's members:

Member

Meeting Date
Meeting dated January 31,2023 v v v v
Meeting dated March 17, 2023 N \ N \
Meeting dated June 13, 2023 < X N
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Meeting dated June 19,2023

Meeting dated August 31, 2023

Meeting dated September 07, 2023

| <] 4| £
= | <

Meeting dated November 12, 2023 X
Number of attendances 7 4 6 7
\,Attendance X Absence - Not a member of the Committee

A- Committee Chairman's Acknowledgment:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee's Chairman, Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni, acknowledges his responsibility for

the Committee’s system within the Company and for reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
B- Nomination and Remuneration Committee's Members and Statement of Their Powers and Duties:

-Nomination and Remuneration Committee' Members as on 26/10/2023.

Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni Committee's Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Salem Al Hosni Member
Mr. Ahmed Al Alami Member
Mr. Ahmed Mansour Member Outside the Directors

- Nomination and Remuneration Committee's Members after restructuring the Committee by the Board of

Directors after 26/10/2023.

Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni Committee's Chairman
Dr. Bassel Hindawi Member
Mr. Ahmed Al Alami Member
Mr. Ahmed Mansour Member outside the Directors

Nomination and Remuneration Committee's Powers and Duties:

1. Organizing and monitoring the procedures for nomination for membership in the Board of Directors in accordance

with the applicable laws, regulations and the provisions of Decision No. 3/R.M of 2020.

2. Ensuring the independence of the independent members regularly. If the Committee noted that one of the members
has lost the independence conditions, the Committee shall inform the Company’s Board of Directors. The Board of

Directors shall notify the member by registered letter to his fixed address at the Company, stating the reasons for his
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loss of independence. The member shall reply to the Board of Directors within fifteen days from the date of his
notification. The Board of Directors shall issue a decision to consider the member independent or non-independent at

the first meeting following the member’s reply or the expiry of the period referred to in the previous paragraph without
areply.

If a member's loss of such capacity will not resultin a violation of the minimum number of independent members within

the Board of Directors, this shall be considered upon forming the Committees.

Without prejudice to the provisions of Article (145) of the Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of 2015, if the Board’s
decision for the lack of reasons or justifications for the member’s independence would affect the minimum required
percentage of independent members within the Board, the Company's Board of Directors shall appoint an independent
member to supersede this member, provided that such appointment is presented to the Company’s General Assembly

to consider the approval of the Board of Directors’ decision.

3. The Committee shall be responsible for developing the policy regarding the provision of remunerations, benefits,
incentives and salaries to both members and employees of the Company’s Board of Directors. Upon developing such

policies, performance-related standards consistent with the Company's long-term performance shall be considered.

4. Ensuring that remunerations and bonuses, including options and other deferred remunerations and benefits offered

to Senior Executive Management are linked to the Company’s medium and long term performance.

5. The Committee shall be responsible for developing the Company’s human resources and training policy, monitoring
its implementation, determining the Company'’s needs for competencies at the level of Senior Executive Management
and executive cadres in leadership positions with high competencies and the basis for selecting and reviewing them
periodically (including salaries and other benefits) in a manner consistent with remunerations/ salaries granted by
similar companies in the market to ensure that the remunerations/ salaries are adequate to attract qualified individuals

to work in the Company in all locations and with high levels and competencies.

6. Considering gender diversity within the composition of Board of Directors to encourage women to nominate for

membership on the Company’s Board of Directors and developing a policy for that purpose.

7. Ensuring the existence of an appropriate and updated succession plan for the Company's senior executives and the

Board of Directors Committees' chairmen.
8. Any other subjects determined by the Board of Directors.

C- A statement of the number of meetings held by the Committee during the financial year, their dates and a

statement of the number of personal attendances:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held 7 meetings during 2023. Below is a statement of the meetings and

the number of personal attendances.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee's Meetings

Meeting dated February 07, 2023

' Meeting dated March 20, 2023 |

Meeting dated April 05, 2023

Meeting dated May 03, 2023

Meeting dated July 10, 2023
Meeting dated August 24, 2023

Meeting dated October 23, 2023

Number of personal attendances of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee's Members

Member

Meeting Date

Meeting dated February 07, \f ‘\! \; “J
2023

Meeting dated March 20, 2023

Meeting dated April 05, 2023

Meeting dated May 03, 2023

Meeting dated July 10,2023

Meeting dated August 24, 2023

< < < = = <
>

> s = - et <

2 - = < " =

Meeting dated October 23, 2023

Number of artendances 7 4 7 7

“"Attendance X Absence

A- Committee Chairman's Acknowledgment:

Dr. Bassel Hindawi, Risk Management Committee's Chairman, acknowledges his responsibility for the Committee’s

system within the Company and for reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

B- Risk Management Committee's Members and Statement of their Powers and Duties:

Risk Management Committee's Members as on October 26, 2023.
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Name Capacity

Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni Committee's Chairman
Dr. Ali Al Kaitoob Member
Mr. Ahmed Al Alami Member
Mr. Ahmed Mansour Member outside the Directors

- Risk Management Committee's Members after restructuring the Committee by the Board of Directors after

26/10/2023.

Dr. Bassel Hindawi Committee's Chairman
Dr. Ali Al Kaitoob Member
Mr. Abdullah Al Hosni Member
Mr. Ahmed Al Alami Member
Mr. Ahmed Mansour Member outside the Directors

Risk Management Committee's Powers and Duties:

1. Adopting comprehensive strategies and policies for risk management that align with the nature and size of the
Company's activities, monitoring their implementation, reviewing and updating the same based on the Company's

internal and external changing factors.

2. Identifying and maintaining an acceptable level of risk for the Company and ensuring that the Company does not

exceed this level.

3. Supervising the Company's risk management framework and evaluating the effectiveness of the framework and
mechanisms for identifying and monitoring risks threatening the Company to identify areas of inadequacy and

inefficiency.

4. Guiding the Management, as needed, to assist in improving their risk management practices and/or mitigating

specific risks, including having qualified personnel at the management level to effectively manage risk activities.

5. Obtaining assurance from the Executive Management and internal audit that risk processes and systems operate

effectively with appropriate controls and compliance with approved policies.

6. Preparing detailed reports on the level of risk exposure and recommended actions for managing such risks and

presenting the same to the Board of Directors.
7. Making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding risk management issues.
8. Ensuring the availability of adequate resources and systems for risk management.

9. Submitting regular reports to the Board of Directors on the size of risks for the Company and immediately informing

the Board of Directors of any substantial changes in risk size.
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10. Verifying the independence of risk management personnel from activities that may expose the Company to risks.
11. Reviewing any issues considered by the Audit Committee that may affect the Company's risk management.

12. Reviewing the appointment, performance and replacement of the Chief Risk Officer and monitoring the overall

effectiveness of the Risk Management Unit.

C - Number of meetings held by the Risk Management Committee during the year, their dates and a statement

of the number of personal attendances of the members.

The Risk Management Committee held 2 meetings during 2023. Below is a statement of the meetings and the number

of personal attendances: -

Meeting dated December 6, 2023

Meeli-ng- ﬂa.re.d December 12,2023

Number of Personal Attendances of the Risk Management Committee's Members:

Member

Meeting Date

Meeting dated December 6,2023 v v | v v

Meeting dated December 12, 2023 \J \] \‘ \I X

Number of attendances 2 2 2 2 1
VAttendance X Absence - Not a member of the Committee

A- Committee Chairman's Acknowledgment:

Mr. Nasser bin Rashid Al-Mualla, Investment Committee’s Chairman, acknowledges his responsibility for the

Committee’s system within the Company and for reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

B- Investment Committee's Members and Statement of their Powers and Duties:

Mr. Nasser bin Rashid Al-Mualla Committee's Chairman

Ms. Eman Al Midfa Member
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Mr. Ahmed Mansour Member outside the Directors

Mr. Abdul Muttaleb Mustafa Al Jaedi Member outside the Directors

- Investment Committee's Members after restructuring the Committee by the Board of Directors after

26/10/2023.

Name Capacity

Mr. Nasser bin Rashid Al-Mualla Committee's Chairman
Ms. Eman Al Midfa Member
Mr. Mohammed Salem Al Hosni Member
Mr. Ahmed Mansour Member outside the Directors

Investment Committee's Powers and Duties:
1. Developing and monitoring investment strategy and policy.

2. Preparing and discussing investment plans, reviewing the principles related to the nature of investment activities and

preparing a plan to work thereunder, along with making necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors.
3. Reviewing the financial results of investments and making necessary recommendations in this regard.

4. Managing the Company's investments in accordance with the Company's interests and the Board of Directors'

instructions.

C - Number of meetings held by the Investment Committee during the year, their dates and a statement of the

number of personal attendances of the members.

The Investment Committee held 1 meeting during 2023. Below is a statement of the meetings and the number of

PETSOI"I&' attendances: -

Investment Committee Meetings

Meeting date: December 12, 2023

Number of personal attendances of the Investment Committee's Members:-

Number of personal attendances of the Investment Committee’s Members:-

Member

Meeting Date

Meeting dated December 12, 2023 ‘J \j \, X

Number of attendances 1 1 1 0
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\" Attendance X Absence -Not a member of the Committee

A. Committee's Chairman's Acknowledgment:

Dr. Ayman Abdel Razek, Chairman of Insiders Trading Follow-up and Supervision Committee, acknowledges his
responsibility for the Committee’s system within the Company and for reviewing its working mechanism and ensuring

its effectiveness.

B. Names of Committee Members:

1. Dr.Ayman Abdel Razek - Legal Department Manager - Committee's Chairman
2. Mr. Amit Kataria - Internal Control Department Manager - Compliance Officer - Member
3. Mr. Mohammed Radi - Vice Chairman Assistant - Financial Controller - Accounting and Finance

Department - Member
Committee's Powers and Duties:

- The Committee shall be responsible for managing, monitoring and supervising Insiders Trading and their ownership,

maintaining their register and submitting statements and periodic reports of the market.

- Keeping a register of all Insiders, including their data and periodic acknowledgments provided by the Directors.
- Notifying regulatory authorities of any changes in the register.

- Informing any person of his status once he becomes an Insider and signs the prescribed forms.

- Informing the Insiders on trading blackout periods set by the market upon receipt and other periods approved by the
instructions and circulars issued in this regard by the relevant authorities, as well as explaining permanent and

temporary blackout periods.

- Reviewing and monitoring Insiders Trading policies, including periodic changes, receiving and reviewing reports of the

Insiders trading transactions.

- Informing the Board of Directors of any trading operation conducted by the Insider if it violates laws, regulations or

circulars issued in this regard and the actions taken or to be taken in this regard.
- Maintaining the confidentiality of information and data provided by the Board of Directors.

C. Summary of the Committee's Business in 2023:

The Committee held a meeting on December 18,2023, with all members present. The Committee reviewed transactions
of the Insiders by examining trading reports received from the market, reviewing the Insiders’ register, monitoring

trading blackout periods specified by the market and ensuring that the Insiders are informed.
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9. Internal Control System:

A.The Board's Acknowledgment of Responsibility for the Company's Internal Control System and for Reviewing

its Working Mechanism and Ensuring its Effectiveness:

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for the Company's internal control system and for ensuring its
review and effectiveness in accordance with laws, regulations and Relevant Securities and Commodities Authority's

Decisions.

B. Managing Director and Qualifications:

A specialized Internal Control Department managed by Mr. Amit Kataria, appointed on November 10, 2013. He also
serves as the Compliance Officer and holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from Mumbai University (College of
Commerce and Economics) and holds an ICAI Chartered Accountant Certificate from the Indian Institute and an AICPA
Certificate from the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Colorado. He has 20 years of experience in
auditing, compliance and risk management, as he worked for several insurance companies such as TATA AIG and

Universal Sompo Japan.

C. Compliance Officer's Name, Qualifications and Appointment Date:

Mr. Amit Kataria serves as the Company's Compliance Officer.

D. Handling of Major Problems by the Internal Control Department:

The Internal Audit Department develops an annual plan to identify risks and their severity. Such plan is also developed
to review and auditvarious departments, divisions and branches of the Company, so that periodic reports on completed
tasks are submitted to the Audit Committee, which in turn presents them to the Board of Directors, along with a plan
aimed at addressing or reducing any violations, if any, noting that the Internal Control Department did not encounter

any problems in the Company during 2023.

E. Number of Reports Issued by the Internal Control Department:

The number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department amounted to twelve during 2023.

10. Details of Violations Committed During the Financial Year, Their Reasons, How They Will Be Addressed and

Avoided in the Future:

There are no violations.

11. Statement of the Company's Cash and In-kind Contributions during 2023 for Local Community

Development and Environmental Preservation:

Social Initiatives by UIC
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In 2023, we launched Balsam platform online, our value-added service which offers our clients several carefully
designed programs that provide relief to certain areas that aren’t covered under traditional health insurance policies.

This enabled our customers to access the programs 24/7.

During the holy month of Ramadan, we organised once again clothes donation campaign with Dar Al Ber Society.
Collection boxes were placed in all of our offices and this year we were able to donate 11 full boxes to the charity

organisation.

In collaboration with our Health Department, we organised a campaign for unused medications to distribute it to the
needy who cannot afford the treatment, ensure safe disposal of medicine and increases awareness of the importance
of avoiding medicine wastage to reduce financial and environmental impact. In total, we collected approximately: 951

tablets, 31 syrup bottles, 5 nasal sprays and 3 creams , which were given to DHA or any registered UAE charities.

Environmental Responsibility

-Energy Efficiency

We aim to be energy efficient at Union in line with the UAE’s direction to reduce emission.
We have LED energy efficient lights in our local offices and the air conditioning is programmed to switch off when no

one is in the office. We have also instilled a culture where our staff switch off the lights before they leave.
-Paper

We are continuously introducing initiatives that help reduce our environmental footprint across our local offices. We

also engage employees through eco-friendly awareness and education to be more environmentally responsible.

We strive to conduct our business in a manner that causes no harm to the surround[ng Iiving environment. As we are
taking significant steps in our digital transformation process, we are reducing the use of paper. Our customers can buy
policies online as well as submit their claims. This has also helped in reducing air pollution as fewer customers find it

necessary to visit our offices for insurance services.
We have tied-up with Greenbox to recycle paper across our offices. In 2023, we have recycled 940 kgs of paper.

-Ink cartridges

Our ink cartridges recycling program now includes all types of cartridges. Till December 31, 2023, we have recycled

2680 cartridges.

In some select departments, black and white printers have replaced color printing for a more environmental-friendly

printing as it reduces consumption of ink.
-Water Bottles

We have started recycling plastic water bottles across our offices in 2022 to help reduce the impact of our business on

the environment by decreasing carbon emission and saving energy and water. We recycled approximately 2335 water
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bottles (500 ml) which is equivalent to 46kgs of plastic. Employees were also encouraged to bring bottles from their

homes.

Cans

We have expanded our recycling program in 2023 to include cans.
12. General:

A. Statement of the Company's share price in the market (closing price, highest price, lowest price) at the end

of each month during the financial year 2023:

Month High Low Last Close

Jan-23 0.632 0.632 0.632
Feb-23 0.570 0.513 0.513
Mar-23 | 0.501 0.500 0.500
Apr-23 0.500 0.500 0.500
May-23 | 0.500 0.500 0.500
Jun-23 0.594 0.405 0.594
jul-23 0.590 0.482 0.590
Aug-23 | 0670 0.531 0.639
Sep-23 0.680 0.531 0.680
Oct-23 0.635 0.635 0.635
Nov-23 | 0.680 0.500 0.500
Dec-23 | 0.650 0.575 0.650

Source: ADX Website

B. Statement of the Company’s Share Performance during 2023

Month Union Insurance
Jan-23 0.63
Feb-23 0.51
Mar-23 0.50
Apr-23 0.50
May-23 0.50
Jun-23 0.59
Jul-23 0.59
Aug-23 0.64
Sep-23 0.68
Oct-23 0.64
Nov-23 0.50
Dec-23 0.65
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C- Statement of the Distribution of Shareholders' Ownership as on 31/12/2023 (individuals, companies and

governments) classified as follows: Local, GCC, Arab, Foreign:

Shareholding
S.N Shareholder Classification
Individuals Companies Government Total

1 Local 121,069,712 197,059,395 0 318,129,107
2 GCC 160,165 0 0 160,165
3 Arab 78,905 0 0 78,905
4 FI‘JI’Eigr‘l 171,003 12,400,000 0 12,571,003

Total 121,479,785 209,459,395 0 330,939,180

D- Statement of Shareholders Owning 5% or more of the Company’s Capital as on 31/12/2023

No of
S.N Shareholder Name Shareholding %

Shares

1 Salem Abdullah Salem Al Hosni 76,614,519 23.15%

2 | AlSalem Company Ltd 66,710,022 20.16%

3 | Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Co. PSC 65,179,710 19.70%

4 | Gulf General Investment Co. 22,943,161 6.93%

5 | Gulf Falcons General Trading LLC 20,055,020 6.06%

E-Statement of How Shareholders Are Distributed According to the Ownership Size as on 31/12/2023:
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No. of No. of Shares
S.N Shareholding (share) Shareholding

Shares Owned by

1 Less than 50,000 12,883,224 2,025 3.9%

2 From 50,000 up to less than 500,000 6,668,865 50 2.0%

3 | From 500,000 up to less than 5,000,000 27,804,970 13 8.4%

4 Over 5,000,000 283,582,121 9 85.7%

TOTAL 330,939,180 2,097 100.0%

F- Procedures on Investor Relations Controls:

Ms. Riham Osama, holding a Bachelor of Commerce from Ain Shams University with a Major of Accounting and a
Master of Marketing from the University of Liverpool, has been appointed as Investor Relations Officer. She can be
easily contacted through the contact details published on the Company's website (Riham Osama -

riham.o@unioninsurance.ae — Tel. +971 4 378 7609).

Additionally, —an  electronic  link  has  been  created on  the  Company's  website:

(https://www.unioninsurance.ae/en/about_us/#/InvestorRelations), which allows access to all financial reports,

Company's news, updates and key events.

G- Special Decisions Presented at the General Assembly Held during 2023 and Actions Taken Thereon:

- No special decisions related to the Company were included in the General Assembly's Meeting.

H- Board of Directors Meetings Secretary and Appointment Date:

Ms. Ranim Fajr Mahmoud has been appointed as a Secretary for the Company’s Board of Directors on 29/09/2021 by

the Board of Directors.

I. Key Events Encountered by the Company During 2023:

- During the general assembly meeting, the appointment of Mr. Ramez Abu Zeid as a director was approved (subject
to the approval of the Central Bank). He then resigned from his position on the board of directors on 02-05-2023 and

was subsequently appointed as an advisor to the board. On 30-11-2023, he was appointed as an acting CEO.
- Resignation of the Chief Life Insurance Officer in the company on 26-04-2023.

- Dr. Bassel Hindawi was appointed as a board member on 26-09-2023, following approval from the relevant

authorities.

- Mr. Abdul Muttaleb Mustafa Al Jaedi, the CEO, submitted his resignation on 01-09-2023, with his last working day
being 30-11-2023.

- Mr. Malaka Bandara was appointed as the Head of Risk Management Department on 27-11-2023.

- Al Salem Company Ltd continues the procedures to submit a takeover bid to all shareholders of the company with
the aim of increasing Al Salem's stake in the company's ownership.
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- A general assembly meeting was called to The company initiated an initiative with Noon company to provide
employees and customers with cash discounts on their purchases from Sivvi.

- Following the annual business review, the company has decided to discontinue writing Individual Life and
Banassurance (Life) overseas to boost profitability. As a result, the company has restructured Life, Bancassurance and
Individual Lines department.

Union Insurance has rationalised its network of branches. As the company moves forward towards offering more
digital insurance solutions, it has closed two of its branches, Ras Al Khaimah and Jumeriah Lake Towers, and shifted
their business to other UAE offices.

consider the accumulated losses of the company and devise a plan to address them, as these losses exceeded 50% of
the company's capital.

- The international credit rating agency "AM Best" reviewed (upgraded) the outlook from negative to stable and
affirmed the Financial Strength Rating (FSR) at B+ (Good) and the Issuer Credit Rating (ICR) at (bbb-) (Good) for Union
Insurance Company PJSC on 13-12-2023. The credit rating outlook reflects the company's public budget position, which
AM Best classified as strong, in addition to its operational performance efficiency, limited business file, and risk
management efficiency.

J. Statement of the Transactions Carried Out by the Company During the Year2023, Which Equal 5% or More

of the Company's Capital:

There are none.

K. Statementof the Localization Ratio at the End of the Years 2020, 2021 and 2023:

The localization ratio in the company for the year 2022 was (11.11%).
The localization ratio in the company for the year 2023 was (15.3%).

L. Projects and Innovative Initiatives Undertaken or Currently Being Developed by the Company during the

Year 2023:

The company did not undertake any projects or innovative initiatives during the year 2023.

Capacity Signature Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors N

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Chairman of the Nomination and remuneration A : ) 2 L,i
: . QG - } . 20
Committee

26[ 03] 2004

Director of Internal Control Department
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Introduction

About this report

We, Union Insurance company, are pleased to issue our Sustainability report for
the year 2023. Through this report, we are highlighting our capabilities and
achievements that comply with the ESG values and objectives.

This report has been issued in compliance with the disclosure guidance set by
the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange on Environmental, Social & Governance
(ESG) Disclosures for listed companies.

About us

Union Insurance was established in 1998 with a paid-up capital of over AED 330
million. It is licensed by the Central Bank of UAE and listed on the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange, with its head office located in Dubai.

At Union Insurance, we provide a comprehensive range of retail and commercial
insurance products to clients in the UAE, as well as the Middle East. Led by
some of the most experienced and respected professionals in the industry, we
make it a point to offer innovative, superior-value insurance coverage.

This includes both standard and customised policies to help individuals; small,
medium, and large enterprises; and government entities, obtain reliable and cost-
effective insurance covers. We offer additional insurance services as well. They
include risk assessment and gap analysis of insurance coverage, conducted by
professionals with decades of experience.

Our comprehensive coverage in areas including (but not limited to) health,
automobiles, life, property, engineering, liability and maritime, frees our clients to
focus on their core operations, and gives them the surety of having robust
insurance policies to manage various risks.

We have obtained ISO 14001, ISO 45001, ISO 9001 and ISO 10002 certification.

Mission
To deliver innovative, high-value insurance products that provide better risk
management solutions to individuals, companies and governments.

Vision
To be the trusted insurance provider in the United Arab Emirates and wider
Middle East region.



Values

Empowerment- Equal Opportunity- Friendship- Innovation- Quality- Reliability-

Social Responsibility- Teamwork- Trust

A Successful Growth Story

Market Position (in GWP terms) improved from
#20 in 2011 to #6 in 2016

Growth Phase
Secured Life Insurance license
Rated by A.M. Best
Grew at 40%-50% annually
Implemented Corporate Governance Framework
Launched direct sales force and tele-assurance
Implemented ERM
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U *  Established in 1998 with
AED 80mn paid-up capital

Continue to Focus on Profitable
Growth and Strengthening of
Balance Sheet
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Strengthened market position
Enhanced brand visibility

Added new products and pariners
Technological advancement
Strengthened compliance framework

Launched smart and integrated application
for customers

Developed Al-empowered system for Motor
insurance

1998-2011 y 2013-2014 2017- 2018
* Sold mainly Motor and Medical e
products
* Only Branch and Broker channels Expansion Best-in-class o
* In 2007, increased capital to AED Revival * Expanded product suite and * BCF put to successful test during this
221mn through rights issuance * Change in branding, pariners pandemic period.
= In 2008, further increased capital management and business model = Enhanced Govemance/ BCM/ * Emphasis on IT Security with Data
to AED 331mn by conversion of * Added new channels — Corporate DR/ Risk Management Center in UAE cloud. )
convertible bonds Life and Corporate General * Strategic tie-ups in Oman * Systems upgrade/automations
*  Product diversification * Launched insurance bond — * Improved customer experience with
»  Expanded branch network QROPS revamped website and self service

* Partnership with aggregators

functionalities.
Cyber Risk Initiatives
* Launched Tele-consultation for Medical



Financial Stability

Highlights

Management

Union Insurance witnessed a change in management in 2023. Mr. Abdul
Muttaleb Al Jaedi who served as the CEO for almost 11 years, has retired in
September 2023 and Mr Ramez Abou Zaid was appointed as the Acting CEO
effective December 1,2023.

Following the annual business review, the company has decided to discontinue
writing Individual Life and Banassurance (Life) overseas to boost profitability. As
a result, the company has restructured Life, Bancassurance and Individual Lines
department.

Union management team comprises well experienced and qualified senior
professionals. All the key positions such as in Underwriting, Finance and
Accounting, Legal, Actuary, IT and Business are filled with professionally
qualified personnel.

Reinsurance Arrangements

Union is supported by a panel of leading reinsurers who have long standing
arrangements with the company. This has helped in sustaining the financial
stability of Union.

Performance Indicators

Insurance Revenue 763,286 633,537
Insurance Service Result 15,373 1,214
Reinsurance Ratio 58.1% 58.3%
Net Claims Incurred Ratio 47.3% 57.0%
Profit/(Loss) for the period 2,506 (2,479)
Return on Average Equity 1.21% -1.20%
SCR Solvency Margin

Surplus/(Deficit) 20,123 46,623
Solvency Ratio 114.1% 144.2%




Solvency and Investments
UIC’s solvency position remains healthy, with a regulatory solvency margin
surplus of AED 46,623,000

The company monitors its solvency position regularly.

Ratin

AM Begst has recently revised Union Insurance’s outlook to stable which reflects
improvements in Union’s regulatory solvency position. The Credit Ratings
(ratings) reflect Union's balance sheet strength, which AM Best assesses as
strong, as well as its adequate operating performance and marginal enterprise
risk management.

Claims Management
As our business is providing coverage mainly in the UAE, we are aware that this

a population of expatriate majority. Our commitment to ensuring that claims are
paid quickly and sufficiently is therefore enhanced as an individual or company’s
financial losses incurred due to an insurable event may force them to leave this
country. The claims we pay towards Healthcare, Credit, Property and Liability are
examples of where our company has helped individuals and company’s suffering
from financial losses by providing them with payments, either on indemnity basis
or fixed sum assured and contributing to the economy by doing so.

In turn, we have developed products and incorporated coverages that are
deemed attractive to policyholders given the potential associated financial loss,
such as involuntary loss of earnings options, whilst ensuring that terms and
condition are clear and concise, increasing transparency to customers, which
contributed to the sustainability of the company.

The table below summarises our claims experience over each of the last 5 years.
Our performance has been consistent across all years, with net loss ratios
between 45-60%, demonstrating our stability and sustainability.

Our incurred claims represent the total claims expected, including claims already
paid. Our future estimates are based on recent experience, which are updated on
a quarterly basis in case of any adverse experience. This is done to minimise
unexpected claims and ensure sustainability in the long term. This demonstrates
our continued commitment of ensuring that policyholder liabilities are met
appropriately.



Net Claims Analysis AED'000s
Incurred Earned

Loss Year Claims Premium Loss Ratio
2019 | 154,581 320,123 48%
2020 | 131,046 289,401 45%

2021 | 166,756 302,064 55%
2022 | 162,269 323,538 50%
2023 | 139,054 237,935 58%
TOTAL | 753,707 1,473,061 51%

Further, our efficient underwriting processes result in healthy loss ratios, ensuring
that we have sufficient funds to cover the fixed and variable expenses associated
with the business. This is vital to ensure our business remains sustainable.



Corporate Governance

Business Continuity
Our business continuity plan ensures that we are prepared for any disruption.

One of the key focus in our BCP and Disaster Recover is the recovery of a
company's IT system after a crisis considering the Recovery Point Objective and
Recovery Time Objective. In order to achieve this, we have a detailed backup
policy along and our primary data center is situated in Dubai with Disaster
Recovery in Abu Dhabi.

Compliance
The Compliance and Corporate ethics policies have been implemented and

these are our enabler in sustainability framework. The Regulatory areas are
given outmost priority and adherence to regulatory Compliance requirements are
always ensured. The Corporate Code of conduct policy has been revised and
updated from time to time. We have robust and comprehensive process for
handling all relevant regulatory and compliance requirements including
submission to the Regulatory bodies. The dedicated Compliance team as part of
UIC line of defense is formed to liaise with Regulatory bodies and responsible for
Compliance Monitoring framework. Following are the key highlights related to
UIC Sustainability in Compliance:

UIC Compliance Manual

Anti-Money Laundering Policy/AML Screening system
Effective Corporate Governance Framework

Compliance Management System with Regulatory Repository
Compliance Owners and Compliance monitoring Controls
Compliance Training to Employees
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Risk Management
The goal of UIC Risk Management process is to ensure that the operations which

expose us to risk are consistent with our Strategy /Business plans and overall
Risk philosophy while maintaining an appropriate balance between risk/ reward
and enhance the stakeholders value. The Insurance processes are designed
within the Risk Management framework to ensure assessment of risks prior to
underwriting. The Risk Management principles are embedded in UIC Operational
and Financial Processes and further mitigation/controls are assigned for the risks
which are having impact on UIC Operational Processes. A dedicated risk
management department has been formed with a Risk officer which reports
directly to the Risk Committee. The Risk Committee charter is already approved



by the Board Committee and risk committee separated from the Audit
Committee. The Board monitors the overall UIC Risk Management framework,
process and practices and approves the overall Risk Appetite. The Risk
Management Committee of the Board has primary oversight over Enterprise Risk
Management and Senior Management share responsibility and accountability for
effective management of Risks across the Organization. The Risk registers of all
the key processes like Underwriting, Operational, Financial and Regulatory areas
are developed with the Mitigation/Controls. Further the Emerging risks are also
monitored for risk exposure and time to time communicated within the Risk
owners to have adequate controls in their area of Operation. The qualitative and
Quantitative approach is being followed for assessment of risks and monitoring
the Risk exposure for each type of risk category. Following are the key highlights
related to UIC Sustainability in Risk Management:

Risk Committee Charter

Risk Committee Oversight Role

ERM Procedures

Enterprise wise Risk Register with Mitigation Controls and Regular Risk
Assessment

. Risk Management (GRC) system

Risk Appetite and Tolerance Limits

Risk Culture with the Functional Departments
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Distribution Channels

Union Insurance has rationalised its network of branches. As the company
moves forward towards offering more digital insurance solutions, it has closed
two of its branches, Ras Al Khaimah and Jumeriah Lake Towers, and shifted
their business to other UAE offices.

The company also utilises a number of diversified channels ensuring
sustainability, reduction in costs and continued growth. A budding channel is
social media where we started to engage with our customers through five
platforms (Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, Twitter and WhatsApp).



Digitalization & Transformation

Our digital transformation strategy ensures that our digital transformation
will enable us to improve customer engagement, streamline operations
and drive growth.

We enable our stakeholders to engage with us through various digital
platforms which ensures sustainability in the digital era. We believe in
providing self-servicing capabilities through our various B2C & B2B Portals
along with automations in the area of Claims, Quote Generations,
Business Analytics etc.

With digitization rises the need of data security and customer data
protection. We adhere to NESA, ADHICS Standards and have a
comprehensive Information Security policy. We cleared the recent audit
conducted by ADHICS.

We also have 1ISO27001, NESA, SOC Compliant Data Centre. Our multi-
layered security architecture protects from cyber-attacks and Intrusion
attempts.

We have an efficient approach to date backup and recovery. We keep a
secure storage of data that prevents loss and permits timely restoration.

LEVERAGE ADVANCES IN

ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE (Al) 1

Streamline processes, boost capacty
and build the digital workworce

——

REGULATORY, COMPLIANCE &
GOVERNANCE

Adherence o NESA, ADHICS
Standards with comprehensive
Information Security policy.

——

SELF SERVICE DRIVES

Ipharmenting Sell-Senvics in cusiomsar
care through bots and vifual agents
can cut costs, increase cusiomer
satisfacton, and load to mone
personalized customer expenences.

USER EDUCATION & AWARENESS

Regular Securty Awareness
Trainings and Advisory

CLOUD HOSTING

~ Execute the business strategy with more
adaptive IT and increased agility and
scalabiity, Roal e data back in DR

sate with zero loss of data

CYBER SECURITY

Implementng Technologies,
processes, and conbrols 1o prolect

=5
m | O | M
F [ __#s] q syslems, networks, programs,
[= = | =] devices and data from cyber attacks
= z=i}

LEGACY 5YSTEM MODERNIZATION

)j The banalits range rom a reduction
In costs, business agility, and
improved productivity and user
axparnence.

- COMPETITIVE EDGE THROUGH DATA

i . Reimventing underwriting by leveraging
new sowrces of data for competitive
advantage and offering new products
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Social Responsibility

Social Initiatives by UIC

In 2023, we launched Balsam platform online, our value-added service which
offers our clients several carefully designed programs that provide relief to certain
areas that aren’t covered under traditional health insurance policies. This enabled
our customers to access the programs 24/7.

During the holy month of Ramadan, we organised once again clothes donation
campaign with Dar Al Ber Society. Collection boxes were placed in all of our
offices and this year we were able to donate 11 full boxes to the charity
organisation.

In collaboration with our Health Department, we organised a campaign for
unused medications to distribute it to the needy who cannot afford the treatment,
ensure safe disposal of medicine and increases awareness of the importance of
avoiding medicine wastage to reduce financial and environmental impact. In total,
we collected approximately: 951 tablets, 31 syrup bottles, 5 nasal sprays and 3
creams , which were given to DHA or any registered UAE charities.

Employees

Ensuring employee wellness is an important objective at Union Insurance. The
management is actively involved in identifying and adopting/implementing policy
changes that benefit our employees.

As part of promoting a healthy corporate culture and emphasising the importance
of physical activity, we have supported our employees who joined the Dubai Ride
on November 12, 2023 and the Dubai run on November 26, 2023.

Our health department organised an online session for prostate cancer
awareness in partnership with Aster Hospitals for our male employees.

We also took an important step towards supporting Breast Cancer Awareness by
organising a special event for our female employees. In partnership with Aster
Hospitals, our health department arranged for reputed doctors to deliver an
enlightening presentation on breast cancer awareness for our female employees.
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Under Balsam Wellness and to ensure the well-being of our employees, we
organised Health check-up camp, where health tests that included cholesterol
levels, blood sugar checks, blood pressure and BMI| assessments were
conducted and were followed by a consultation with a GP.

Administration Department has taken the initiative to distribute a First Aid box to
all our branches. The kit helps to reduce the severity of unfortunate incidents that
could take place in the office. Customer Service representatives can administer
the basic first aid until the required professional medical assistance arrives.

In line with the federal government initiative, we continued to promote a work life
balance by adopting a 4.5 day work week.

We have also tied up with Noon to offer our employees and their families
discounts on their purchases on Sivvi's websites. We have also tied up with
Khaleej Times to offer discounts on KTGamez.

Union also issues a bi-monthly staff magazine, Al Nabaa, to facilitate employee
engagement where they learn about each other’'s achievements and personal
milestones.

Diversity and Inclusion

Our Diversity and Inclusion framework helps UIC to target initiatives and improve
diversity and inclusion across the corporate. UIC is committed to developing
policies, practices, and ways of working that support diversity. Employees from
over 21 different nationalities are currently working at UIC.

Equal opportunity is offered at UIC and women form 32% the workforce.

All employees are evaluated basis their contribution to their respective teams and

the organization. The organization also complies with all the statutory
requirements listed by the Ministry of Labor.

Women in Leadership

As an organization, we help nurture and grow individuals to lead senior positions
within the company. The female member of the board make 14% of total
members.

Emiratisation

Inspired by the UAE Vision 2021 that aims to empower UAE nationals to drive
economic growth by increasing their participation in the labour market, we are
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firmly committed to nurturing and developing the local Emirati community for the
long-term benefit of our business and the national economy.

We take our responsibility towards the Emiratization initiative very seriously and
aim to always achieve and surpass the set targets. In 2023, 15.5% of our
workforce are UAE nationals and we continue to develop Emirati talent and
continue to meet the regulatory requirements. of Emiratisation. We have
organised two training and career development sessions that were specifically
crafted for UAE Nationals and were attended by 20 employees.

Our objective is to attract well qualified UAE Nationals to the company. We have
participated in three Job fairs organized by EIF and Sharjah Government to invite
talented Emirati nationals to be a part of the company.

Training and Career development

A New Joiner Orientation (NJO) is the first training session that all employees go
through. This session is aimed to help the employees get better acquainted with
the organization structure and technical areas/departments.

Post the NJO, each department head puts the employee through a training
program/period. This is managed directly by the department and is customized
basis the role and career level of the individual. The objective is to ensure that
the employees is coached by experienced team members on the tasks and
process using real life examples and situations. This also allows the employees
to understand their role, responsibilities, and key performance areas.

We also provide annual online training for AML and IT Security via our inhouse
training platform.
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Environmental Responsibility

Energy Efficiency
We aim to be energy efficient at Union in line with the UAE’s direction to reduce
emission.

We have LED energy efficient lights in our local offices and the air conditioning is
programmed to switch off when no one is in the office. We have also instilled a
culture where our staff switch off the lights before they leave.

Paper

We are continuously introducing initiatives that help reduce our environmental
footprint across our local offices. We also engage employees through eco-
friendly awareness and education to be more environmentally responsible.

We strive to conduct our business in a manner that causes no harm to the
surrounding living environment. As we are taking significant steps in our digital
transformation process, we are reducing the use of paper. Our customers can
buy policies online as well as submit their claims. This has also helped in
reducing air pollution as fewer customers find it necessary to visit our offices for
insurance services.

We have tied-up with Greenbox to recycle paper across our offices. In 2023, we
have recycled 940 kgs of paper.

Ink cartridges
Our ink cartridges recycling program now includes all types of cartridges. Till
December 31, 2023, we have recycled 2680 cartridges.

In some select departments, black and white printers have replaced color printing
for a more environmental-friendly printing as it reduces consumption of ink.

Water Bottles

We have started recycling plastic water bottles across our offices in 2022 to help
reduce the impact of our business on the environment by decreasing carbon
emission and saving energy and water. We recycled approximately 2335 water
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bottles (500 ml) which is equivalent to 46kgs of plastic. Employees were also
encouraged to bring bottles from their homes.

Cans
We have expanded our recycling program in 2023 to include cans.
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